
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, October 3rd, 2017.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we don’t have any changes to the agenda tonight.


*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF SEPTEMBER 5, 2017 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I will ask for a motion to adopt the minutes of the last month.  
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I gave Chris minor edits...

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 7-16      a.
Letter dated September 12, 2017 from Keith Staudohar requesting a one-year time extension of conditional Amended Site Plan approval for the reconstruction of the existing replacement office building at Paraco Gas located at 8 & 14 Bay View Road.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so you didn’t need to say anything more?  That’s fine.  Tom, please, we have a Resolution.
Mr. Keith Staudohar stated we submitted a letter indicating why we are requesting a time extension.  I understand staff has recommending a three month extension.  We are respectfully requesting that we at least push it back to six months.  The company has gone through some managerial changes and some positional changes.  We recently found out that the trailers that we were going to reuse may not meet the current energy code, the new energy code.  So we’ve got a little bit of scrambling to do.  So we’re asking for the six months if we could get that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated well I think the three month is what we’re planning on granting you and that’s because of some of the other items still outstanding and not completed yet, is that correct?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded I think three months is more than fair in this instance and then we can reevaluate after the three-month period.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if it’s not done in three months then he would have to come back and request another time extension but we would not encourage that.  We would encourage a resolution in these three months. 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated I understand that but three months happens like that.  You know it’s going to be the holidays so you know that’s why I figured six months, we can get it all wrapped up.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I have the three months on this so the Resolution 24-17 Madame Chair, submitted for approval with a three-month time extension. 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we’ll see you in three months.
PB 9-99      b.
Letter dated September 12, 2017 from Linda Whitehead, Esq. requesting the 24th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Furnace Dock Inc. Subdivision located on Furnace Dock Road.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a Resolution for you.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion to approve Resolution 25-17 but I wasn’t sure if anyone wanted to say anything.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you know my position on this is like it’s becoming outlandish virtually to have this many but we do understand that there was an illness, and it’s prolonged then I’m hoping that…

Mr. Steven Wrabel stated we believe we’re in the homestretch here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we seem to be setting a precedent here.  The next person will say “you gave them 24, you can give us 25.”  This is really a bit much but, anyway, we do have the Resolution for you.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you, have a nice night.



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW):

PB 2017-5  a.
Public Hearing - Application of Mikiko Ino for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for residential and commercial use of a historic structure for a proposed museum/art gallery located on an approximately 1 acre parcel of property at 115 7th St. in the hamlet of Verplanck as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Mikiko Ino” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated August 23, 2017.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated Jim Annicchiarico with Cronin Engineering representing the applicant Mikiko Ino.  As you know, we’ve been before you for about the past five months working out some of the details of the plan.  I’ll run down some of the bullet points of the project.  Currently, it’s an existing 40,353 square foot lot that is the former place of the Saint-Patrick’s School.  There is a two-story building, the larger building and there is a one-story building – I’m sorry, the two-story building was the school building at one time and the smaller building was the gymnasium and cafeteria for the students and there was also a residential structure on the lot where the staff stayed or the nuns for the school, as I understand.  It is located in the RG (General Residential District).  It is between 7th Street and 8th Street, about 200 feet north of Westchester Ave.  The school building has been vacant since about 1991.  My client has purchased the building a few years ago and plans to turn it into an art gallery, art museum, place for the public to come and learn about art and work on art.  That is why we are before you.  The proposed plan proposes to renovate the existing two-story former school building and turn that into, there would be one space in that for a gallery to Kiko Saito who was Mikiko’s husband who passed away about a year and a half ago or so and that would be a permanent display of his artwork in that room.  There will also be another space on the first floor that would be rotating art in a gallery-type setting.  There would an office.  There would be a workshop where students could learn the art of building picture frames, art picture frames.  Then there would be a space adjacent to that that would be for students just to learn art and be taught.  On the second floor, there would be two spaces, almost identical to one another.  They would be for artists and residents.  The artist would live there and create their art in those spaces.  Then there would be a third space on the second floor with a larger space that would be for gallery events that would probably happen twice a year or so.  The plan proposes removal of about 10,000 square feet of impervious area, mostly formerly asphalt which was the playground and what not, parking area for the school.  That would be returned to green space.  We have also proposed a lot of landscaping along the perimeter fencing.  That was something that the board wanted to see more of.  We had originally had a plan and we’ve added to that to accommodate the board.  In addition to that, there’s an existing septic system on the site which we’ve inspected and seems to be more than adequate.  We do have to get something from the Health Department I believe just for the change of use.  It was used for 120 students every day and this use is much less than that use.  We do require a Special Permit from the board for the artist and residence.  Last month, the Town Board at their meeting they voted to deem the structure historic or of historic significance which allows the artist and residence aspect of the project within that building.  That has been completed and paves the way for that to happen.  Parking, we have – if you just go by the square footage of the building and the proposed uses of it, just strictly math-wise, we require 33 parking spaces, however, the daily usage would be much less than that, probably 10 to 15 at the most.  Although we do show 33 parking spaces, and that’s broken up into 21 permanent spaces and 12 land bank spaces that would be available at any time to be utilized.  In addition to that, during an event on one of the larger events, there are 9 spaces out on 8th Street which are typically vacant.  I don’t believe any of the adjacent houses or owners use any of those spaces.  Eighth Street is a two-way street and we are proposing also the entrance and exit into the site off of 8th Street because it makes the most sense.  There is another entrance to the site off of 7th Street.  That’s a narrower entrance.  We are showing 33 parking spaces on the site itself which meets the requirements per the code, however, like I said, we think that the daily usage would be much, much less than that.  In addition, if during the events, the larger events we see the need for additional parking there is public parking along Broadway but we also do believe that many of the people coming to the events will come by train and the owner has proposed that she would shuttle people from the train station to the events.  That’s about it in a nutshell.  I’d be happy to answer any questions that the board might have, but that’s basically the project. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there’s anyone seated here who wishes to make a statement of some sort, please feel free to come up, stand at the podium, tell us your name and your address and make your comments, pro or con. 

Ms. Holly Eickler stated hi, my name is Holly Eickler.  I live at 112 7th Street, directly across from there.  Wasn’t planning on speaking tonight.  A little nervous.  I guess I’m speaking for my mom and my family who just happen to all live right next to each other right across the street as well.  We’re happy with what’s going to be going on here.  That building, like they said, has been sitting there for a good 25 years just wasting away and it’s a beautiful building.  We think it’s going to be even better, so much better to look at, to have people around.  We were a little nervous and so were some of the other neighbors because of course there’s always chatting in our neighborhood, about the parking, but he answered all the questions I had about parking.  Because you’re always worried, is anybody going to come and take our space but thinking back that they are from the city and those friends of theirs and stuff like that, that may be coming probably would be coming a lot by the train.  A lot of her friends that do come to visit her come by train so we’re not worried about any of that stuff.  Like I said, we’re really excited, we’re really happy.  No place on earth can you ever get someone who buys a building, comes to you and hands you a paper and cookies.  We’re supposed to be welcoming her.  She comes to the neighborhood and tells us exactly what they’re planning, they’re intending to do with that building which was amazing.  She went to every neighbor, her and her husband went to every neighbor to introduce themselves, gave us phone numbers if we saw something that was – when they weren’t here because they came a lot on the weekends, if we saw something we thought was suspicious which we have over the years because the kids like to go where it’s overgrown and hang out.  It was wonderful for her to just come to us.  She didn’t even give us a chance to come welcome her.  Again, we’re all thrilled.  I’m excited.  A lot of our family went to that school and to see some life being breathed into it, it’s just going to be amazing and we wish her well.  We do.  We really wish you well.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anyone else who wishes to comment?  The board has considered this application for the last few months and we had decided at our work session that we would close the public hearing at this particular point.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we’ll have a Resolution for the next meeting.

Mr. Peter Daly stated I make a motion to direct staff to make a Resolution for November 8th.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re welcome.
PB 5-16     b. Public Hearing - Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan approval for an existing industrial building located at 260 Madeline Avenue as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Approval. Appian Way Ventures, LLC” prepared by Steven J. Basini, R.A. latest revision dated August 15, 2017 (see prior PB’s 6-09 & 7-14)

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody here from…

Mr. Steven Basini stated good evening, Steven Basini, architect representing Appian Way Ventures LLC.  We had presented, based on last month’s meeting, there was a request for additional information and obviously we’ve opened the public hearing.  One of the major items was an updated survey.  We had updated the survey over the last few weeks.  Merritt’s Associates, the site plan that you currently have shows the revisions to the lot as far as the parking, it’s the updated curb outline of the gravel trench that goes around the property.  What I had them do is basically, there was gravel out there that was utilized to put out there years ago to capture the rainwater from the leaders and that is sort of like a trench going around the property but it’s almost like a curb stop that goes around the property.  I had them pick at the top of that slope as it went around and as they started pulling back a lot of the gravel and things to determine that and the bushes, there’s curb stops back there.  So basically, they actually surveyed the entire perimeter of what we can park on.  The revised site plan shows those parking spaces.  They’re not much different than what was there originally but in fact, there’s more have been created because there’s a larger expansive area than what the survey originally showed.  Originally I had showed on here a 104 parking spaces and 127 required.  We were able to show 114 parking spaces now and due to the current tenant location plan, the required went up to 128.  It went up one spot but we did pick up 10 extra spaces.  Where we were looking for an allowance of 23 prior, we’re only asking for an allowance of 14 now.  In addition to that survey, a lot of the other things were verified as far as the locations of the entrances and the gates where the garbage area is.  There really were no changes, but this is currently the updated survey and the parking is accurate.  There was also a request for the floor plan of what would be proposed for the second floor, a more detailed floor plan which is 11’ x 17’ in your packet.  This shows the floor plan and it’s really not much revised than the previous one was but I’m not actually sure that this board saw that one because that was a building permit application.  It’s not much different than what was originally approved for permit.  That area where you see those four offices or four examination rooms right there, that really is one of the main change.  That was just two offices there, now that one office is being divided into four with a mechanical system.  The rest of the area is really the way it was laid out.  It was actually sort of meant to be, so-to-speak.  Two bathrooms are existing.  The water fountain, the sink were all existing, or to be installed as far as the other permit.  But this is the layout.  The other change in this application is going to be all the windows are going to be replaced.  Currently, they’re fixed.  They will be replaced with operable windows for ventilation. I know there was a question regarding that.  And you’ll see where the crates are essentially intended to be laid out along of the perimeter of the building allowing a lot of space in the interior for care and maintenance, training, whatever else is required.  I believe those were the two main items that were asked to be addressed.  I know previously I had submitted documentation addressing the parking as far as the zoning code is required explaining why we are substandard and the benefits of not providing more spacing and the fact that it’s all gravel and it’s better for impervious surfaces.  I’d submitted that previously.  I’d also submitted a record of the septic and all the other documentation in the previous memo from the department a year ago.  In addition to that, what I did not get a chance to respond to was the memo that came out yesterday from Holly Haight.  I believe that the board has reviewed that or has that in their possession.  I just want to be able to address these if you don’t mind, just briefly and the first eight of them are quickly addressed and the other ones I can talk about in about five minutes.  Just so this board knows, this plan here, this tenant layout plan was done the day of submittal, essentially.  I made sure they went out there that morning and checked all of the tenants, confirmed this plan, printed it the 10 and 12 times, whatever it is and delivered it here.  It’s an accurate plan.  There were some questions because maybe there’s not signs on the doors of who’s renting what and there was a previous alligator business in there that was confusing me with the Komodo reptiles that’s there.  Just so you know none of these items are major issues that can’t be resolved very quickly and this owner, and I’m not trying to pull a wool over anyone’s eyes, so let me go through that real quick.  Number one, 140 says vacant.  On a sad note, the owner just recently passed away and that sign hasn’t come off the door yet but he is no longer a tenant.  It is a vacant space.  It is a small 150 square foot space but it is vacant.  Komodo Reptiles, and item number two, and item number six, those four spaces, they are current tenants.  They just paid their rent yesterday I believe, or it was the day before.  I think that was the confusion.  They thought it was a previous business that had been booted out of there that was raising alligators or something but…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated excuse me, I’m not following that.  What are you saying?

Mr. Steven Basini responded item number two that says “plan indicates Komodo Reptiles.”  The sign on the door says that they are there but they are no longer in the space, confirm.  They are there.  I actually even confirmed it again with them this morning by phone call but the owner told me that night and I saw them that day of the submittal.  I saw him sitting in his office and I saw the other spaces they occupy.  They are there.  I think that Holly had misunderstood.  There was a previous tenant of a very similar business that had come in and then had left and I think that was where the confusion was but Komodo Reptiles has been there for 20 years.  They are the longest standing tenant in that building and they are absolutely still operating in there.  So that space is occupied.  I think that was clarified. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated yes Steve if I could just interrupt you for a quick second.  In Holly’s memo when she says “unable to verify” that’s because there was not a tenant physically there so she was not able to access the space.  So she’s not questioning what is actually in there, she was just saying that she was not able to physically enter that space. 

Mr. Steven Basini responded it says “sign on door says same but they are no longer in that space.”  And that’s why I read that as a certainty…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but going through the rest of them, there are a few that she indicates was not able to get in there so she’s just letting myself and Chris know that she was not physically able to get into that space.

Mr. Steven Basini stated not a problem.  Thank you for the clarification and I’ll take a different tone but those four spaces are definitely occupied by Komodo Reptiles currently.  Gam World is absolutely occupied right now and if she says “unable to verify”, verify that with the owner.  They’re on the books as a current tenant.  Small, little space but they’re not there a lot.  1,2, 3 HVAC is a current tenant as well.  There’s some problems I believe personally with the son who operates it and possibly the mother but I know that currently they are a tenant on the books.  They have their materials in that space.  Whether or not people see them coming in and out of there I can’t govern but they are absolutely on the books as a tenant.  The same goes for AIS Distribution. They don’t utilize the space very often.  They’re currently still working on their business plan.  It’s actually an exciting process that they’re going through.  They’re dealing with home shopping networks and hardware stores to try and produce their product but either way that is a space.  They have some product stored in there and they are currently a tenant and they absolutely are in there.  There’s not signs for a lot of these.  I know that down here, this last one, or one of the items says that she put vacancies on all the doors.  In the same light there’s not signs on Komodo Reptiles and there’s three spaces where they have their animals because maybe they don’t need it, it’s interior.  They’re not trying to advertise.  They don’t see anything on AIS but they’re definitely a tenant.  I addressed item number six, Komodo’s in there. Now the last two items, my understanding when I verified this was that the DMV license cannot be issued unless there’s a copy of a current lease agreement which is provided by the owner of the building and also a C of O on the property, a Certificate of Occupancy on the property.  My understanding was because there’s a currently building application and a Planning Board application here that that couldn’t be issued and so the owners, those buildings, they did not come to get that.  That was clarified and addressed to me today by the Building Inspector and the gentleman here that there was a change of use form that can be applied for, a change of tenant rather that can be applied for and then an actual C of O or something similar is issued on that space.  Those two items will be addressed as quick as possible.  They have the paperwork done and waiting.  They just couldn’t do it until those two items are verified.  We now know that they can be verified without this process being completed and that will be done immediately.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated so for clarification, they’re not licensed.

Mr. Steven Basini stated they have the paperwork.  They’re allowed to practice by DMV apparently but they can’t put the certificate out there and say it until they get those certificates in.  That’s my understanding.  I talked to C&K Little Garage.  He gave it to me in depth.  He said “I have all my paperwork.  They know I’m operating but I can’t get the piece of paper until I do it.”  There’s a limited amount of time apparently. The rest of the items here are building maintenance and again, Bob Osier’s here.  He maintains the building.  I know that there’s issues here of some straight propane tanks and a panel that was undone that was actually being worked on.  Today the electrician went in and put the panel cover back on.  He maintains the building.  Whether there’s some issues that occur during the course of an individual inspection I believe Bob’s a standup guy and has always tried to take care of those but the first item there is something that’s difficult to address.  RC Transit specifically has a business where they take cars that are unregistered at times, bring them in, repair them, register them and put them back out on the road as cabs.  There’s on occasion where there will be a car there that is unregistered and Bob can’t really control that and it’s their business.  It’s not there for a very long time.  If they are, then by all means, the Board, and Holly, and the Building Inspector has a right to issue a violation and Bob can address it with the tenant but on a daily basis, it’s hard to really control that.  The other items are, there may be a vehicle or two that people put on the site.  He’s now planning to be there more often because this business, this kennel business is part of what he wants to operate as well and he’ll be able to oversee operations on a daily basis as opposed to maybe a couple of times a week when he’s out there normally.  But on any given day, if someone drops off a vehicle or parks a vehicle there and takes a plate off of it, he has no control over that.  However, if there’s something out there when Holly says there is, and there’s a violation, he’s more than willing to tow it at the owner’s expense but I hope that’s not an issue that would hold up any approval.  Propane tanks have been removed.  That’s item number two.  The fire sprinkler system was in the middle of repair I guess.  Marshall Fire Inspector is prepared to do that by the middle of this week, tomorrow or Thursday.  The debris outside of RC Transit I believe may have been tires or something, that’s being removed as well.  Missing extinguishers, tags, Hudson Valley Fire just on September 5th came out and issued a report to Bob, inspected everything.  Bob forward that report to Holly.  If something in the meantime or is something was missed, again, he’s not avoiding anything of this.  If there’s a tag that Holly says is out of date and Hudson Valley missed it, he’ll absolutely take care of it.  Again, there’s no avoiding this.  And the electrical panel was done today. Like I said, I was literally in the middle of repairs and the electrician was there and he put it back on.  These items I hope will not delay things.  I understand however, there were some concerns and I know that this is new information and that we want to hear from the public as well but I just wanted to address those items and let you know that we weren’t avoiding anything.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there’s anyone here, in the audience who wishes to make a comment…

Mr. Steven Basini stated I wanted to be able to have Lisa Smith talk to you.  You had requested that she’d speak.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well fine, if they want to come up and say something.  Did they want to come up and speak?

Mr. Steven Basini stated would it be good to speak before the public?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, certainly.

Mr. Steven Basini stated sorry about that, my apologies.  Lisa Smith who runs K9 Kindergarten is here tonight with Bob Osier.  It’s sort of her business model that they’re opening on Westchester Kennels on the second floor, something she’s been working with on a smaller scale and she’s looking to expand.  There was some detail operations this board was asking to know about plus just the general business plan if she could speak for a few minutes I think it would help to understand things.  Lisa?

Ms. Lisa Smith stated hi, how is everyone?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded good, how are you?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded I’m good thank you.  I’m very passionate about rescue.  I’ve been at K9 Kindergarten owner at K9 Kindergarten for 13 years.  I own three locations in Westchester County.  We have a great reputation.  We have a cage-free facility.  We offer outstanding services to clients throughout Westchester and the tri-state area.  In the last seven or eight years I’ve slowly gotten into rescue starting with one client that was disabled and could no longer care for her dogs.  So I helped her and I found that very rewarding.  I was pulling off of the ACC, the three main kill shelters in New York, high-kill shelters in New York State.  I would bring them to my home.  I would keep them in isolation.  I would train them myself.  I would find homes for them and I found it more and more difficult and it was more and more challenging.  And I wanted to help in a greater capacity so I found out that several dogs are being pulled off of these lists for rescues that have fosters that have committed to these dogs.  They pull them and the fosters back out and they have nowhere to go.  So I actually found out over the last two or three years that there’s something called Warehouse Boarding, they’re in airports, they’re in the Bronx.  They’re in these large facilities that have no light.  The dogs come in and they never leave.  It’s like the gates of hell that they walk into.  They get no medical care.  They live in their own feces.  It’s very loud.  It’s very stressful.  Dogs are there in pain.  They have severed backs.  They have broken limbs.  I wanted to help in a larger capacity.  So I started working with larger rescues and I worked with about a half a dozen all from Long Island, Connecticut, Queens and so far I’ve been able to adopt out about a hundred dogs per year just myself in K9 Kindergarten Verplanck.  I’ve actually have known Bob my whole life.  My family’s known his family.  As he heard me talk about my passion, he wanted to get involved and he wanted to do more and I feel that moving some of the rescue out of the location it is and moving it over into this suite in the same building, we can do so much more.  We can help so many more dogs and help alleviate a lot of the tax burden to tax payers because it is a big expense and we can adopt out more dogs.  I have such a huge demand for dogs.  People come, they drive from West Virginia, they drive from Connecticut, they drive from Massachusetts, New Hampshire to come to me to get dogs adopted to them.  Our care is very specific.  It’s very custom and I get very little return because I place the dogs correctly.  We know all about the dogs.  We make sure that their quality of care is very good.  I work with one specific veterinarian who’s very well known in Westchester, a very good quality vet.  I work with rescues that are the best, that will raise money, that will pay for medical services, that will pay for training, that will pay for training after the dog has been placed in a home as well. It’s just been a really phenomenal experience and for every minute that we don’t help, more dogs dies.  So for me, this is a very important cause, comes straight from my heart and I feel that services like mine, luxury services need to give back to the community and that’s where I come from.  I feel like it’s my obligation to give back.  I’ve always been philanthropic and I have discussed this model at length with Bob and the dogs will get nothing but the best care while they’re here.  I feel it’s very important to our community.  We need something like this.  We have a long list of foster care, volunteers that come together and help us.  We involve the community in this.  It’s something that I don’t think has been done.  I’m on the Board of Directors of Paws Crossed as well, it’s a true no-kill shelter.  We do not kill for behavior, in Elmsford New York.  I’ve been on the board for I guess two years now, so it is important to me.  I’m heavily networked with many, many different rescues.  Thanks.  Does anybody have any questions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded let’s open it up to the public and then we’ll have some questions for you?

Ms. Lisa Smith asked should I sit down?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked if there’s anyone in the audience who has a comment that you want to make, please come up to the podium, identify yourself and your residence and make your statement.   Apparently, there’s no other person who wants to comment so we can get questions from the board. 
Mr. Robert Foley asked two quick questions.  How many dogs are there currently or what is the max you would have and second, it was discussed at the work session getting rid of the dog waste, how is that done?

Mr. Steven Basini stated the number of dogs I account for is about 105 to 110 is what they’re looking at housing in the facility at this time, maximum.

Ms. Lisa Smith stated we’re looking to start with maybe 50 or 60.

Mr. Robert Foley asked how many are there now?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded there’s nobody there now.  At K9 Kindergarten we have up to 20 at a time.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but they’re daycare like or overnight too?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded we have at K9 Kindergarten we can have anywhere up to a 100 to 120 dogs a day but out of those dogs, we have 15 to 20 rescue at any given point.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so the rescue and the kindergarten are combined.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded combined right now.  I’ve been doing it – I started out of my home.  I integrated it into my business and now I would like it to be a rescue center. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the K9 Kindergarten stays on the first floor and the rescues on the second floor, is that how it goes?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded no, K9 Kindergarten is the first floor but if you go down past several tenants, up to a second floor, that would be the new location where rescue would be held.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s where the examining rooms are?

Mr. Steven Basini responded it’ll be that facility.  

Ms. Lisa Smith stated that’s the layout.

Mr. Steven Basini stated that’s the second floor.  That is the entire second floor of the building.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I guess the question is if I’m bringing my dog for daycare it would go to the facility on the first floor and stay there?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded it would go to K9 Kindergarten.  It would not go to the rescue center.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so it’s one business so-to-speak but separate locations?  The dogs won’t mix.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded it’s a separate entity.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s a separate business you’re setting up, for the rescue?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded yes, correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked how long do the rescue dogs generally stay there?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded so in order to be evaluated medically, it could be anywhere from at least 24 hours to a week, medically and behaviorally, but I can get in a dog – I’ve gotten dogs adopted out and under an hour.  It really depends and some dogs will take a little longer so I would say if I’ve had a dog three months it’s probably too long and that’s when we change our marketing and we do different videos and we come up with a plan to find that dog a specific home but on average I’m adopting out myself about two or three dogs a week.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on that part of the business, because of the behavior aspect of the rescue dogs, is there an on-site qualified person there 24 hours?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded no, they don’t need on-site care 24 hours but for behavioral reasons?  We’re not taking aggressive dogs.  All these dogs – the rescues will have a backup plan so generally where an aggressive dog would stay is in a kennel or they would stay in a veterinarian’s office or they would go, ideally, to a board and train where they work specifically with aggressive dogs.  We’re not taking that top tier of aggressive dogs.  We’re taking really friendly, nice, family dogs.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so there’s no problems overnight?
Ms. Lisa Smith continued my veterinarian goes on and on and on about it.  There’s not going to be a problem over night because there’s a schedule for the day.  So just like at K9 Kindergarten, we haven’t had any complaints.  We could if we let the dogs just do whatever but we don’t.  They’re on a strict schedule and by the end of the day, they’re exhausted.  Some dogs go home two or three days later.  The client calls and says “my dog’s still not getting up.  What did you do?”  We worked on trial and error for 13 years so we know what works.  So they have incentive, they have training, they have walks, they have fresh air.  We’re constantly changing the air.  Just like babies, it works with dogs.  Stimulation, volunteer that’ll come in and work with that dog and sit with the dog if the dog needs touch, if the dog needs just simple basic exercises.  It gives the dog something to do.  Sometimes it’s even a car ride.

Mr. Robert Foley asked there’s no objection from the K9 Kindergarten clients?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded I would say 90% of the dogs that K9 Kindergarten clients have are rescues.  There’s much more of a push to adopt now than to go buy a pedigree.  My parents did it for years, we only bought pedigree and they all died of cancer very young.  I said to my parents at 16 years old “no more.  We’re not going to breeders.  We’re going down to the shelter.”  That’s what we did, the same shelter that I’m on the board of now.  I would say if you had a problem bringing a pedigree dog into a business where there are rescue dogs and you don’t want to go to K9 Kindergarten because we have 90% of our clients have mixed breed dogs.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked waste disposal, is that…

Ms. Lisa Smith responded we bag it and then it gets picked up.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated those two questions pertaining to that, first being what happens to the pet waste and the second because we did not have counts as to the number of animals that could potentially be kenneled in the facility and the second question would be the increase in water consumption because there was correspondence sent from the Westchester County Department of Health requiring that this facility send quarterly water consumption reports and that started earlier this year in February of ’17 so one of our conditions and concerns would be that you have an updated Health Department approval.  Then finally, if you have your regulation and your permits from the New York State Department of Agriculture and Markets, if you have your permits for Animal Control…

Ms. Lisa Smith responded so I have permits from the Health Department, Westchester County Health Department, that’s what I’ve had every year.  They come in and do inspections, unannounced and they love us.  We love them.  We’ve had a fantastic relationship.  As far as, I hope I addressed the waste issue because we bag it and it gets picked up.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked as a rescue kennel under the New York State Department of Agricultural and Markets?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded there’s no category of doggie daycare.  There’s no category of cage-free boarding.  No one’s updated that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked so you’re only viable is the Westchester County Department of Health as a requirement?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded yes we are a kennel.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked and you have your updates pertaining to that number of dogs, the increase in boarding?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded yes, we have a certificate that’s posted and we renew it every single year.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked that certificate is consistent with the K9 Kindergarten, now that you’re expanding to the upper level do you have an updated certificate?
Ms. Lisa Smith responded that we applied for the new?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded no.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated that would be a condition that you have to do.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded of course, we would have to, yes.  The waste I think I addressed but the water consumption, we’re not doing any – we do grooming at K9 Kindergarten so that’s more of a water consumption issue.  There’s going to be no grooming at this location.  If dogs need to be groomed, they’ll go to K9 Kindergarten but there’s not a lot of grooming involved.  I would say at least, I don’t pull really small dogs and small dogs need a lot of grooming, every six to eight weeks if not more often but I pull more medium and large breed dogs and the majority of them are short hair and you never have to groom a short hair dog, ever. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s just a far off question with the Health Department just to make sure that you’re within the same occupancy and use that was previously approved for that tenant space.  So you just have to update that.

Mr. Steven Basini stated the use of the water, the consumption of the water is going to be basically by the dogs, the increase.  As far as the waste it’s not increased at all.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but clean up too as well as the kennel space.

Ms. Lisa Smith stated and mop buckets but it’s minimal.

Mr. Steven Basini stated but that’s all been approved with the sink and the toilets.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’re just mentioning it, you have to get your updates with the Health Department.

Mr. Steven Basini stated we’ll take care of it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked how many employees do you have?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded at the new location?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked how many do you think you will have at both locations when you’re up and running?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded in my location I have about 10 and at the new location we would probably have about four to start and some volunteers.  Bob would be there full time and I would probably be there full time, all the time anyway, probably I’ll be there all the time.

Mr. Peter Daly stated you have an exercise area, outdoor exercise area for the K9 Kindergarten.  What are you doing for the rescue operation?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded we’re going to rotate those dogs into K9 Kindergarten.  So if we have 50 dogs in the new location, we’re not taking 50 dogs a day over to K9 Kindergarten but we’ll make sure that – I would say that the average dog, if it gets one day a week at K9 Kindergarten that’s a luxury.  Most people can’t do that with their dogs so one day a week is a good amount of exercise, it’s a 10 to 12 hour day of exercise.  So if you can imagine going to the gym for 10 hours in one day a week, you’re pretty exhausted.  For dogs it works just as well.  I would like to start with one day a week, if they need to, then two to three days a week and it depends on the energy level of the dog.  Certainly, seniors are not going to want to go play three days a week.

Mr. Peter Daly stated sometimes it’s just for them to go outside and just sniff around.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded they’ll definitely get regular walks, we’ll walk them but it really depends on the energy level.  They can still go there and lay down or just socialize, they don’t necessarily have to exercise but we would assess each dog individually.  Some dogs are not good candidates for that.  It’s not for every dog.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have a quick question.  I’m a little concerned about the fact that there’s no one there at all in the evenings, throughout the night.  Why is that?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded if we think that someone will need to be there, we’ll have somebody there because I do staff 24 hours a day, 365 days of the year at K9 Kindergarten.  I always have.  That’s always been our model.  We are sprinklered so there’s no issue with that but if they’re exhausted and they’ve played all day -- there are many, many large franchises across the country that do not have anyone attending to the dogs at night.  Kennels don’t, Camp Bow Wow doesn’t, Best Friends doesn’t and they have modeled these across the nation and they make millions and millions of dollars and these are private services, these aren’t rescue dogs.  So if you think about where these dogs are coming from and where they’re going to, the idea is not that they will be boarders and that they will stay long term.  These dogs are there short term.  They may be there one day, they may be there a week, they may be there a month.  The idea, the best thing for that dog is to get into a home and that’s the goal, that’s the idea.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but I’m thinking a dog might become ill in the evening, at three o’clock in the morning, nobody’s there, the dog is ill, until you open up at 7:00.

Ms. Lisa Smith stated the chances of that are very low if they’re getting good, quality medical care, they’re getting assessed when they come in, they’re getting walked daily, they’re getting touched, they’re getting looked at.  So the chances of your dog just having an illness at three o’clock in the morning is very low.  My father’s been a physician in Westchester County since 1962.  He still works.  He’s 84 years old.  So I spent 10 years in medical.  Bob is a surgeon so I feel based on my 13 years with dogs, my entire life with packs of dogs in my home and my experience working very closely with vets, we’re going to assess them very well.  The chances of something happening in the middle of the night are – and not only that, even if something were to happen in the middle of the night it’s not necessarily something that we can prevent or help but there are many, many, many kennels and dog facilities.  We are probably one of the only ones in New York State, very, very few actually provide 24 hour care.  That’s why we’re so expensive.  It’s very expensive to do that.  So K9 Kindergarten charges $65 for a 24 hour period so people go away on vacation, they’re dog’s vacation is just as expensive if not more as theirs.  To be able to do that, incorporate that into rescue is – it’s going to be very difficult.  We’re not charging luxury rates.  If we have to do that we will.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you have any capability to monitor it electronically overnight?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded yes, absolutely.  Our location is camera.  The whole thing has five cameras so I can access it a camera at any time but yes we can camera the whole thing.  I do it in my home too.  It alerts you to things, yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so let me understand this.  So Kindergarten part of this has 24/7 coverage?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded 24/7.  We never close.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but the rescue part does not.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded the rescue part…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but they’re both in the same building.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded right.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and if you had to, does the person that is attending the Kindergarten section periodically go and visit the other dogs…

Ms. Lisa Smith responded the person at the K9 Kindergarten would never leave those dogs.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated they would never leave the dogs.

Ms. Lisa Smith responded because it’s cage-free.  We don’t have cages or crates so that person never leaves the dogs.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but there is somebody there 24/7?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the cage-free I thought you said was for your new business?
Ms. Lisa Smith responded no we can’t do cage-free in rescue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated happy to hear that.

Mr. Steven Basini stated in the kennel they’re all isolated in cages.  There’s not a mix.

Ms. Lisa Smith stated they’ll have a different levels of socialization.  It’s kind of like school, like a school for kids.  So some will be higher up, have learned more and some will be just learning so K9 Kindergarten, where it does comes into play in socialize, those dogs are pretty well socialized.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked are there any units below the rescue area that operates in the evenings?  I’m just trying to match up the first floor with the second floor.

Mr. Steven Basini stated there’s a couple of small offices that are only 9 to 5.  There’s Komodo Dragon – there’s actually a hallway.  There’s a hallway, bathrooms and three small offices that all close regular hours. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated because they’re not all being exercised all day, it’s once a week that they’re in the rescue end getting exercise so…

Ms. Lisa Smith stated we’d like to start with once a week.  If they need it, twice or three times a week.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so being tired and going to sleep in the crate may not actually work out the way it works over in K9 Kindergarten…

Ms. Lisa Smith stated see because I’m on the board of a shelter so at the shelter they don’t have that either. So some dogs do get to play but there are dogs that do not prefer to play with other dogs.  They’re not comfortable with that so those dogs you have to figure out how to not let them get stir crazy in a kennel so we do, do this and we do know how to do this.  It’s by training, incentives.  So incentives could be just higher end bones that take a little longer, it could be toys that have puzzles that the dog has to work at getting.  It could be a car ride.  I do that at K9 Kindergarten too because my rescues don’t always fit into the perfect puzzle of a well-socialized dog so it has to be custom care.  I do have one that can be – he’s a wonderful dog but he can be in smaller groups, he cannot be in larger groups and he gets a little stir crazy so we have volunteers come, we take him out.  I have a full time trainer on staff that just works with my rescue dogs.  We’re heavily involved with training so at K9 Kindergarten we do training, grooming, daycare and cage-free boarding.  We also do early puppy socialization which we can incorporate the rescue into too as well for young puppies.  We have a senior room so we also care for every kind of age dog and every type of personality.  As far as being in that kennel, no one‘s going to sit there stir crazy or they will not be adopted out, they will not show well.  But I have dogs from the shelter in Elmsford that come to me because they’re not showing well and they come to me and they say “Lisa, this dog’s been here eight months and I can’t get this dog adopted.  What can you do?”  I’ll say “give me the dog, come on, and I’ll work with that dog.”  So we’ll do the same thing here.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so that’s my last question, is it sounds like you have a huge heart and it sounds wonderful.  What’s your plan to avoid the warehouse situation?  You can’t just keeping taking dogs, and taking dogs because 50 will turn into 100 to 150.  What if they’re not showing well and you’re not getting rid of as many dogs you thought you would, what happens then?

Ms. Lisa Smith responded we strategize in many different ways.  It’s not just about saying, let’s get rid of the dogs that aren’t working.  Let’s give them back to the rescue and let them deal with it.  So we’ll come up with new marketing tools.  We’ll come up with – we’ll do different events to get that dog noticed.  We’ll get the dog what it needs but if we can’t handle that dog it’ll go back to the rescue and the rescue will put that dog into, like I said, a board and train where they’re working with a trainer that can deal with more difficult issues, behaviorally or – we don’t euthanize so that’s not an option but I’m also pulling…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated if you get a maximum number of dogs, you’re comfortable not taking any more than that even if a no-kill shelter says “we need to get rid of this dog, can you take him?”

Ms. Lisa Smith stated that happens all the time.  Dogs die every day and I say “no” every day.  It’s probably the worst part of my life is saying “no” and watching that dog die.  I’ve done that thousands of times so it happens.  It’s the reality of the situation.  I would like to ideally be back working with the high-kill shelters in New York.  I would love to be able to change legislation and save tax-payers money.  And I can see all the deficient areas in the shelters and where it can easily be fixed but we’re not there.  What I’d like to do is it’s much more practical to take these dogs that are sitting in warehouses that are really good, highly adoptable, social dogs and place them into families.  We took 10 Texas dogs two weekends ago and we got 9 adopted in under two hours.  The 10th one I did not get adopted because I did not take it to the adoption event because he was more of a feral dog and he came with an injury so we kept him back.  We took him to the vet and he did not even – he will not even go to show until he’s much more comfortable with human touch, but he’s not aggressive.  They are now sending me six more Texas dogs on Sunday morning which I already have applications in.  I have people that walk away from me because I can’t get them dogs fast enough and that kills me.  I’m a business major.  I’ve been in business my whole life, even I’ve been in medical and I’ve been in daycare but I have applied my business skills.  This is the deficient part of the rescue.  They’re not business people.  They don’t know how to do that.  They can raise money.  They have a passion for dogs but they’re not efficient.  So right now they’ve got dogs all over the country and no one’s watching them.  Nobody knows where they are, nobody knows what’s going on.  I’ll call a rescue and say “get me this dog” and they’ll say “well we have to find out where it is first.”  I mean I have a two month old puppy that just came tonight from Massachusetts with pneumonia.  I have one with kidney failure.  I do medical fosters as well at home.  This is so easy to fix.  This is so easy to improve but people don’t have the skills, they don’t know and so Bob’s got a good head for that, I’ve got a good head for that and we have different attributes we can bring to this and make it very successful.  I’ve been successful.  That’s why I know this can be successful, I’m positive about that.  and I’m not interested in taking a mass volume of dogs.  I’m not interested in that.  I can only do my share.  I can only do my part but a big part of what we’re doing is raising awareness. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we really appreciate the information you’ve provided, certainly you have a commendable spirit in terms of working with these dogs that are unable to find homes for whatever reason.  The board is trying to give you, to close the public hearing and give you some resolution to this.  I am a little concerned, a little less concerned about your area at this point and still more concerned about the fact that we have all these little problems with identifying who’s in what space downstairs.  
Mr. Steven Basini asked what was the question? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued it’s not a question, I’m expressing a concern that the various individual businesses downstairs, not the upstairs part, seem to be vacant without the appropriate sign or things that are just not quite the way they’re supposed to be.  Now, the last time you were here, Appian Way was here, I’m not sure that you were the person at that time, I don’t recall, but there was almost a similar issue that things were kind of loose and people didn’t know who was where and this person had left, and that person was coming in, and this person needed this.  I really would like to see that part of the business operated a little more efficiently.  It’s commendable too that you ran around and got this material on a sheet, your sheet is labeled the 20th I think, wasn’t it?

Mr. Steven Basini responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and then we got this yesterday with all these contentious little issues about things that are not quite the way that they’re supposed to for a person who’s coming in to sort of look around.  Why can’t we get that part of the business together?  Because it was very similar to this kind of situation the last time you came.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I was here.  Can I address that?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Steven Basini stated briefly actually.  The items as far as who is in the space, there was a misconception on the memo that came out yesterday.  As far as who’s in the space, I hope I made that accurate but that is accurate and there was a misunderstanding I think in the fire inspector’s as far as there wasn’t a sign or she misunderstood who was in there.  The only item, open item on that first eight points is that the DMV licenses for those two businesses are not posted.  That is something that we are addressing immediately.  But I understand where you’re coming from because you’re right.  This is a business where he has tenants that come and go.  The majority of his business is Liberty Press, K9 Kindergarten, Komodo, they’ve been there for many, many years.  There are a couple of spaces however that may have changed and he’s got vacancies in there.  He tried to fill them obviously to pay his taxes and to keep his business running.  I was told today, like I said, that there’s a change in tenant form that he needs to address or we need to address in each time that occurs, and the Building Department has to have a say in who goes in there.  That’s what we’re going to be doing going forward.  We now are aware of the process.  This however, is an accurate snapshot and I can only say that as a professional.  I know that you need to have consultants confirm that but this is an accurate snapshot of who’s in there right now and beyond a doubt.  And we’re moving to get to where you want to be so that the future tenants that go in there are properly processed.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Holly also mentioned other things.  Stray propane tanks on site, multiple unregistered/uninspected vehicles, fire alarm system in utility room is disabled and that it should be connected to the sprinkler system flow and tampers immediately, immediately.  There’s debris outside one of the owner’s businesses and he says it was related to a previous tenant and has to be removed.  There’s debris and it needs to be removed.  When you move in, you move the debris out.  Why is it just sitting there? Somebody is saying “it has to be removed.”  The tags on the extinguishers are not there.  There’s an open electrical panel.  This is what I’m saying.  There’s all these little things and a person is running a business and he’s got all these tenants in there and there are things that are clearly not properly either inspected or managed or brought up to date in a timely fashion.  What are you going to do about that?

Mr. Steven Basini responded I addressed those comments definitely one of the comments at the beginning but one of the points I made in the presentation, and I want to be very clear on that, Bob operates the building, he is also a surgeon as well and was operating another business as well.  He has now dedicated or going to dedicate himself and he can speak to that to this business and will be there now instead of coming in there a few times a week to check on things and check on tenants, whatever.  He will be there on a daily basis.  To go forward he will be there.  The owner, the operator of the building will be there and seeing operations happening every day so that is going to put forward to maintaining the site all the time, and not letting things slip – not letting anything go as far as unregistered vehicles, he will be able to operate and witness all of that.  These items on here though I mentioned earlier.  The tanks are gone already.  I mean this is why I say he can do it quickly.  If there’s an issue that’s brought, the tanks were removed.  The Marshall Fire Inspectors are coming out by tomorrow or Thursday to connect the sprinkler system, immediately is as immediately as I…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m happy that he’s doing this stuff immediately but it should be done so that when they come that’s not an issue that they have to deal with.

Mr. Steven Basini stated and you’re right, as far as the vehicles and if someone puts garbage out in front, and this is where I have to beg to differ, if garbage puts out in front or if vehicles pull into the property and then someone comes out to inspect it from the town and sees it that day and Bob didn’t really see the vehicle or sees the garbage put out, there’s a violation or warning needs to be written out, absolutely he can address it but I don’t know that on a daily basis he can maintain every single item and know when Holly’s going to come out to inspect that.  As far as the vehicles, it needs to be addressed.  He’s told his tenants a few times.  He can only tell them so much and if it’s there it has to be towed.  But garbage and maintenance of the building, it’s done quickly when it’s noticed but also he’s going to be there on a daily basis and that’s as far as I can say really.  He’s going to be there now.  The owner of the building will be there on the second floor overseeing that operation and the operation of the building going forward.  I hope that helps to sway concerns.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so Loretta, this case has been around for a while.  What we had thought is that we had talked about this public hearing and then having a resolution of approval tonight but, as you recall at the work session, because of these issues we asked Holly to go out and take a look at it and Holly wrote the memo and Steve feels that he has addressed most of them or they can be cleared up so I would suggest that Holly will go back out, keep in touch with Steve over the course of the next month.  We’ve already told Steve that we didn’t prepare a Resolution for tonight and I think based on the comments from the board, the questions about K9 Kindergarten, the questions about Holly’s memo, we’ll resolve those between now and next month so we think we could have a Resolution for next month, because as I said at the work session, we want to get this site approved but we want to get it approved once we know exactly what’s there and any violations have been cleaned up so then moving forward we’ll have a better idea of what’s going on out there as people come and go.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated well I’m certainly amenable to that approach.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked at K9 Kindergarten, you are working on the second floor space underneath the building permit that was previously issued, correct?
Mr. Steven Basini responded we are currently.  We can only go – we’ve actually gone almost as far as we can go at this point.  The bathroom and plumbing fixtures can be put in and things like that, but there are partitions like I’d mentioned in that plan, we’re subdividing that office and making little exam rooms.  We can’t do any of that until Martin receives a plan from me for a revision to the permit and that can’t be granted until this board either gives an okay to do that or approves this site plan.  We’re almost kind of at the point where we can’t go any further with the construction.  I was going to ask about that as well being that the public hearing will be closed or has been closed.  I don’t know if that’s a possibility to complete that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated well you can prepare the revisions for submission to the Building Department for review to just the modifications to the permit would not be issued until we can initially approve the site plan which would be next month.

Mr. Steven Basini stated so no.  Okay, I understand.  Thank you.  Can I ask, I didn’t want to interrupt, when you talked about drafting the Resolution of approval, any of these items in here that you’re concerns as far as maintenance, and vehicles, and unregistered vehicles, and those two certificates need to be put on there.  I know you’re going to be putting in the stipulations of approval.  We’re going to be looking to get all those minor items addressed before that meeting, however, going forward if there’s property maintenance concerns and you want to put that in there I would only ask that it not – if there’s a vehicle and you say “no unregistered vehicles can be on the site” that that not be a violation of the site plan approval but more just a violation from Holly and then we can have it removed because then…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated as we discussed earlier today, the unlicensed and unregistered vehicles are not permitted so they should be removed from the site immediately.  If they’re associated with the taxi services, that’s part of their business then it should be reflected on the site plan as to how many vehicles they are proposing to keep on site under their business plan and provided they get the adequate DMV approvals we would memorialize with the…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that would be a solution, the plan might show two parking spaces or three parking spaces dedicated for unregistered vehicles.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but a section of the site plan should not turn into a junkyard. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because if Holly goes out there and finds six unregistered vehicles not in that location then she has the ability to issue whatever she needs to issue.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s understandable that certain percentage of vehicles are going to be repaired so let’s just memorialize that on the site plan.

Mr. Steven Basini stated okay great.  That’s great.  Thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing and have staff prepare a Resolution for the next meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Basini stated thanks very much for your time.
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (CONTINUED):

PB 1-15      a.
Public Hearing - Application of Montauk Student Transport, LLC, for the property of Worth Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a school bus depot with total of 186 parking spaces, a maximum of 91 parking spaces for full and van size buses and 95 parking spaces for passenger vehicles, a fuel storage and dispensing facility and the use of the existing 4,200 sq. ft. garage/office facility and storage barn building for a business office, employee lounge and garage for light service and maintenance located on a 4.98 acre parcel of property at 301 6th Street as shown on a 12 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Montauk Student Transport, LLC” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated June 16, 2017. (To receive Memorandum of Understanding from the Town Board and remove the case from the agenda)

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is actually one that is not going to be discussed tonight.  Technically they’re waiting for a memorandum of understanding from the Town Board and eventually this will be removed from the agenda.  Tonight there is no discussion in this particular public hearing.  I don’t believe there’s anybody here who wanted to discuss this anyway. 
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing to the December meeting.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so just in case you didn’t hear, we are moving this off the agenda tonight and rescheduling it for the December meeting.  Hopefully by that time the memo of understanding will have been cemented.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 13-16    b.
Public Hearing - Application of Steve Auth, for the property of VS Construction Corp., for Site Development Plan approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removals permits for an approximately 4,929 sq. ft. building housing bays for car washing, motorcycle washing and oil changes on an approximately 28,000 sq. ft. parcel of property located on the northwest side of Route 9, approximately 1,000 feet north of Annsville Circle, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “New Carwash for Steven Auth” prepared by John J. Gilchrist, R.A. latest revision dated July 20, 2017.

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated Madame Chairwoman, members of the board, I’m Michael Finnegan here representing the applicant.  We’re here to address any additional questions the board may have and whatever questions members of the public may have concerning the application.  Following the presentation, we’d ask that you consider closing the public hearing, voting to prepare an approval Resolution for the November meeting with conditions of course as have been discussed.  We need to get a final NYSDOT approvals and permits, that would be a condition, an agreement with the New York State Division of Military of Naval Affairs as an additional condition and approval by the Zoning Board of three minor area variances to the 25 foot buffer zone in the front of the property, the 30 foot side lot requirement along the south side of the property and a 30% vegetation lot coverage requirement.  Each of those we’re prepared to discuss in detail tonight.  Since we last gathered, Madame Chairwoman, we’ve submitted five additional documents at the request of staff.  There’s the Storm Water Management Report, the zoning chart which became an issue at the Zoning Board has been corrected and submitted to staff.  The lighting plan has been submitted.  The water recycling plan with all the engineering details have been submitted and there’s more detail that have been submitted on soil conservation.  In addition, today, a landscaping plan was submitted to staff for comment and it is that landscaping plan which we would hope, subject to your comments, would be one of the conditions of the approval.  As discussed previously we’re in a bit of a catch 22 with the Department of Transportation and with the Division of Military Affairs.  Neither will proceed until we have some final approval by the Town after which they will grant us the agreement.  So far, the discussions have all been fine with both parties but they have that as a requirement so we’d request that you make that a condition of any approval that you would be willing to grant.  For the benefit of the public, I know you’ve all heard this many times so forgive me for repeating some of the things we’ve said before, but the Crystal Clean Carwash is going to set a new standard for sustainability in the carwash industry for a number of reasons which I’ll discuss.  In addition, it meets nearly all the goals that were set down by the Comprehensive Plan by the Town which emphasized sustainability: smart growth, sustainable economic development, energy efficiency and ecological harmony.  In addition to that, there were some specific provisions in the Sustainability Comprehensive Plan which pertain to the Annsville Waterfront District.  Specifically, they wanted to see innovations of materials and construction.  Also that would improve the built-in environment in the area, that it would consume fewer resources, that it would generate jobs and expand the tax base and provide for future economic benefits within the district and the Town generally.  To go back over a few things for the benefit of the public, the Crystal Clean facility conserves water.  It’s a zero discharge facility.  The electricity is powered by solar generation.  We have recycled oil to provide heating for the water used in there.  The detergents are all biodegradable.  In addition to that, we have a rain water capture and a conservation system so most of the water used will either be recycled or rainwater, they’re very little requirement to be actually drawn from a well.  As noted in the Sustainable Comprehensive Plan by the Town, after construction we’re going to seek certification from the Westchester Green Business Council.  Specifically regarding to the water conservation, approximately 93% of the water used in each carwash will be recycled.  We have linear drains, and as noted before, there’s a zero discharge from each bay.  The use of high-pressure, low volume nozzles reduces the water required to wash each of the cars and the seltzer system uses less than the auto, and as noted, we have a couple of bays that are self-serve so that will be even less demand on water.  With regard to water quality, we’ve discussed this before but the use of apron drains is going to capture any of the water that’s not captured within the bay itself before the vehicles exit the carwash bays.  In addition, there’s no phosphates and no nitrates so we’re well within the TMDL standard established by the federal government and adopted by the state.  We’re using a separation system to remove any particles from the water down to a five micron level which is extremely small.  In addition to that, there’s an advanced oxidation system which clarifies the water and eliminates the odors before it’s been recycled for use.  The hydrodynamic separation system is what’s going to be used at the property line so anything that drains, that remains and runs off even from rain water will be separated, never mixed with the water that’s going to be used in the carwash system.  As far as the reduced carbon footprint, this is a significant part of the proposal that Mr. Auth is making and something that the carwash industry is paying particular attention to.  He’s installing solar panels to provide the electricity for the site.  The backup for that will be the grid and the backup to the grid will be generators.  So that will provide the bulk of the electricity service required for the facility.  The heating both inside of the facility and for the water will be from the oil collected on the site for the oil change operation and from neighboring businesses.  There’s no pumps to be used in the facility.  Everything is gravity-fed.  We talked about that in some detail at the last meeting but this reduces, again, the carbon footprint and the need for any kind of additional electricity demand.  With regard to waste, for the benefit of the public, the waste from the cars is collected in each one of the bays.  There’s a pit beneath where the cars get washed.  Those bays are swept and cleaned daily.  The particle waste is removed on a weekly basis and disposed of off-site.  With regard to parking and traffic, everything has been submitted to the state DOT.  State DOT has indicated that it complies with their requirements.  With that, I’ll take any questions you may have Madame Chairwoman, members of the board, members of the public. 
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there’s anybody here who wishes to make a comment, a statement, please come up, identify yourself and where you live and make your statement.  There being no comment from the public, are there questions, comments, concerns from the board members?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess in your litany of things that you riled off, you still need Department of Health permits correct?

Mr. Michael Finnegan responded Department of Health?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated in terms of your septic system?

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated I believe that to be the case, yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked which will also be part of the Resolution?
Mr. Mike Preziosi responded it would be condition of approval.  That is standard for the course.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and I think there was an issue also, the DOT mentioned, and that’s they’re waiting for us, is that what you said?

Mr. Michael Finnegan responded yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked as is Camp Smith?

Mr. Michael Finnegan responded correct.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and also was there an issue with the SWPPP connections?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded there’s a few outstanding items that will be wrapped up with conditions of approval, the first being the Department of Health approval for the well and sanitary system, another condition of approval would be for the permitting with New York State Department of Transportation for the driveway connection via US Route 9 and also the proposed connection to their infrastructure, their catch basin for overflow associated with drainage generated from the roof and/or the paved areas on the site, not the recycled rain water.  The third issue would be the resolution of the technical items pertaining to the SWPPP ensuring that a hundred percent of the carwash water is recycled and reused and that nothing is leaving the site.  They’re more technical at this point in generalities the concepts are shown to work.  They just have to be fully vetted with us and technical back and forth.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked from a technical standpoint you guys have the heights of the walls?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded we received an updated survey.  We would just ask that the design professionals overlay the property survey to this proposed site plan to see where the property lines fall within the walls and how much grading would occur on site versus off site which would necessitate the Department of Military and Naval Affairs to permit work on their property.  We do have a cross section of the wall.  The new topo does show that the walls are not as tall as previously designed for which is good but we do have a cross section and I would advise that the applicant just take a quick second to explain type of raw material that is going to be used as the esthetic impact to the project.

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated and if I might just one point of clarification Mr. Kessler, the way the process works with DMNA, Camp Smith makes a recommendation after reviewing the approval resolution and the specific landscaping plans, it then goes to Latham.  So it is actually in Latham where the approval is granted.  Camp Smith does not have the authority to do that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and the landscape plan…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well what happened, which you should be thankful for is just today, this afternoon a bunch of documents came in.  Usually I would try to run around and copy them for you but I talked with the applicant and they’re technical in detail.  A lot of them – one of the things that came in was the landscape plan which we’ll make sure you get, we just didn’t feel it was necessary to race and get it to you tonight but we’ll take a look at it and if it’s – we can always call up Steve Coleman or somebody if we have a question but I think we’ll probably be able to handle it inside.  But, you’ll definitely get a copy of it.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated there’s not many tree removals associated with the project, just that one tree.  So they’re replanting plan is to bring up the landscape coverage on the site.  It’s fairly comprehensive.  We’ll just double check the materials to make sure it’s on our approved list within our town code.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I just don’t want it to be a condition of approval rather…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated understood.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the plan will show a landscape plan.  But I think what Mike was asking is this is the detail of the proposed wall which will go around a lot of the property being varying heights.  On a lot of projects the Planning Board has opinions and questions about the wall, what it looks like.  And this shows what it’s constructed of but I don’t know if you wanted any more detail about how it would look.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated no, just if you can quickly describe to the board the type of segmental block wall you’ll be proposing, material and manufacturer may change but just the general size and type; a quick explanation as to the requirements of the grading to go onto the Camp Smith property.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you want to do it now?
Mr. John Gilchrist stated John Gilchrist, architect.  We’re proposing a modular masonry wall.  All of the masonry will be on our side of the property line.  The GO grid which is the reinforced earth part of the system will be in fact on the Camp Smith side of the property.  The masonry, it’s a split face appearance with intrinsic color, very common these days.  I don’t know if you have any questions about it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what’s split face and intrinsic color?

Mr. John Gilchrist responded it’s not painted.  It’s part of the material.  

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s more natural looking colored.

Mr. John Gilchrist continued it’s colored concrete and exposed aggregates.

Mr. Steve Auth stated it’s the same wall that the Cortlandt Town Center along the front of the Town Center as you’re pulling out, it’s the same type of wall.  It’s made by Versa-Lok also made by Unilock and is Palumbo wall maker wall but they’re all similar and structurally sound.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and what do we think the walls are varying from one or two feet to now four or five feet?  What’s the highest point of the wall you think, roughly?

Mr. Steve Auth responded I think the biggest wall we have probably right now is about seven feet and I think the grading, depending on what we’re permitted to do with DMNA, would enable us to reduce the size of the walls. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated further back they’ll permit you to grade, the lower the walls are going to be.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and the highest point of the walls will be in the back of the property?

Mr. Steve Auth responded yes.  It’s the same wall at Westchester Mall that steps down as you come out.  It faces Route 6 if you’re leaving say the A&P or ACME now, make a left, that whole wall there, it rises up and then steps back down.  It’s the same exact wall.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the point I was trying to have them make is it’s a little more esthetically pleasing than just a typical large block wall that’s 30 inches by 18.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we appreciate that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so it’s got some esthetics to it. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so my understanding is that there’s some additional things that we got, a lot of information today that needs to be reviewed by staff so if we were to bring this back as old business that would be appropriate.  We’d close…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the applicant is making a request that there be a Resolution for next month’s that could be discussed after you decide whether to close the public hearing or not.

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated and the reason for that sir is just simply we don’t want to miss the construction season, December knocks it down…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but to that point, and what I told Steve today is one reason, and Mike can correct me if I’m wrong, that we may be willing to go to a Resolution next month is the assumption that it will take a certain amount of time to get all of these necessary permits.  Now, to Mr. Auth’s point he wants to get started on that process but to our point, it may take three months, six months, who knows how long it will take and he can’t start work on the site until we have those permits in hand.

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated under normal circumstances the DMNA approval for example would take probably three months right. They’ve been involved all the way through.  The people at Camp Smith are aware of it.  They like what’s been proposed.  They’ve sent pictures and drawings up the line.  They’re poised to act so we feel like we can probably get that done within a month.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated as we discussed with Mr. Auth at the work session, the DOH, the DOT approvals they’re not known to work very quickly with their approval so the 30 days may be very optimistic.  In the interim, Mr. Auth, Mr. Gilchrist can work together on finalizing the architectural for building permit review, etc, etc, but the site plan won’t be signed off on until we get those third party approvals.
Mr. Michael Finnegan stated understood, and we may miss the season altogether but at least with your approval we can advance the ball both with NYSDOT and with DMNA and that’s really the larger point.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess maybe at this point, before we close, I just want to go on record of saying I’m a, probably the only member on the board who is very much against that left turn out so I just want that to be part of the record somewhere.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a left turn in.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes, I’m sorry, coming north you make a left turn in.  I’m against that, very much so.  Mr. Canning made a very good argument for whatever methodologies he uses but I live there, in that area and I know how crazy that traffic can be coming down off the Bear Mountain Bridge road and also the traffic coming north and circling the – coming off the Annsville Circle.  When they converge and they start up that path towards 9, it can get very scary.  People are all in a hurry to get as far north as fast as they can and I just see that the potential for serious accidents is there if there is no lane for that…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated what we can do with some projects after 12 months of operations, after the Certificate of Occupancy is granted we can have an updated traffic study to evaluate accidents along the corridor associated with that…
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m hoping there won’t be any.  

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’re hopeful as well.  DOT did look at this and recommended a left turn in so we could put a condition of approval to have a traffic study be updated in 12 months.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, more so for the applicant than the Planning Board but you did that for the Shoppes on the Boulevard, you did it for Brookfield on Route 9A.  It just allows whether you retain Mr. Canning.  Mr. Canning’s very familiar with what the Planning Board wants just an update after a year.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated so if there are any incidents or accidents there after the carwash opens does that trigger…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but the reason I brought that up is that with – was it Shoppes that developed a traffic protocol and laid out what the steps would be if there was a high accident found?

Mr. John Canning stated for the record, John Canning with Kimberly Horne.  I don’t recall what Shoppes did.  I do recall for Brookfield on Route 9A that there was an extensive monitoring program and that they came back to the board and had to demonstrate that the levels of activity and safety were within what was projected.  With this application, presuming that it’s approved and built, there would a post-opening survey.  It would document the level of traffic and whether there had been any accidents, and it would be reported to this board and this board would then have the authority to direct the applicant to implement measures to address any deficiencies that were identified.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, and one of those things could conceivably talk to the DOT about whether a dedicated left turn lane became necessary.

Mr. John Canning responded correct, that would be a possibility among other items.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated or as we’re hopeful there’s no action that would need to be taken.

Mr. John Canning stated the best outcome is that there is no action.  That’s what we would all hope for obviously.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I certainly do.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so in other words then, it would be the responsibility of the DOT to effectuate a left turn lane or a longer queuing or the applicant?

Mr. John Canning responded the DOT owns the road so if you want to do anything to the road you have to get the DOT’s permission.  If you want to do anything to the road you have to pay for it.  So you go to the DOT, you ask them “can we put a left turn lane in?”  They said “it’s a good idea.  It’s not a good idea.”  If they say it’s a good idea we want you to do it then the applicant must pay for it and do it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked but your study so far, and based on your discussion with DOT, they haven’t required that yet.

Mr. John Canning responded no, DOT has said that they would like to have the ability at some point, should it become an issue, to revisit it.  And I recognize the Chairperson’s concern regarding traffic merging from the circle and traffic coming across the Annsville Creek, and merging to go north on Route 9 but I’d like to point out that the level of traffic on that four lane section of Route 9 which is a state highway is about a quarter less than it is on the two lane section of Route 9 when Highland Avenue merges with Roa Hook Road.  It is a busy section.  I’d also like to emphasize that the busiest time for carwashes is on a Saturday afternoon which is less busy direction on northbound Route 9A so it’s my expectation that there should not be an elevated number of accidents.  Hopefully there’ll be no accidents at all at the driveway because it’s a four lane roadway and it has a lower volume of traffic.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and the lane going north is a single lane with a shoulder?

Mr. John Canning responded there’s two lanes northbound, two lanes southbound.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated at that point.

Mr. John Canning stated at that point and there’s probably 25% less traffic than there is up beyond Highland Avenue where you’ve got only two lanes, one lane in each direction because you have that merge.

Mr. Robert Foley asked less traffic up there?  Where does the other traffic go?

Mr. John Canning responded Highland Avenue.

Mr. Robert Foley asked oh it comes off of Roa Hook traffic light…

Mr. John Canning stated no so you’ve got basically two roads merge, the bigger one is Route 9, it goes up and it merges in with Highland Avenue where you come through the rock cut and George took it down.  It merges and then you’ve got like 25% more traffic up to the north. 
Mr. Robert Foley stated my concern was the same as Loretta’s but we’ll see what happens.  You know making the left turn in.  If you want a very active business, I hope there’s no long queuing up and rear enders happening in the left lane.

Mr. John Canning stated I guess it’s important to remember, when you make a left turn out you have to yield to traffic coming from your left, traffic coming from your right so you have twice as much traffic to deal with and you’ve got to look two ways at the same time which is not easy to do so it’s much, much more difficult to do than when you’re making a left turn from the major street off of the highway.  You’re basically on the road.  You’re approaching the driveway.  You see what’s coming.  If nobody’s coming, you don’t even stop, you slow down and you turn.  If somebody is coming, you see them, you wait, there’s two lanes of traffic and in the evening which is when most of the traffic is heading north, that’s when traffic is kind of lower in the southbound direction so there’s more gaps so it – the analysis that we’ve done indicates that the delay for that left turn movement will be minimal.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m not a traffic consultant but I do recognize that there’s a potential.  I’m just saying there’s the potential for a lot of rear end action out there. 

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated duly noted Madame Chair.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so where were we?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing for this application tonight.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and we’re prepared to draft a Resolution.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated if it’s appropriate and only if information is available that we would draft a Resolution for our next meeting.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Michael Finnegan stated thank you Madame Chairwoman.

Mr. Steve Auth stated thank you very much.



*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS:

PB 3-09      a.
Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 6 page set of drawings (of the complete 29 page set) latest revision dated September 20, 2017 and on a 10 page set of renderings and floor plans entitled “Proposed Residential Development for Pondview Commons” prepared by Gemmola & Associates dated September 20, 2017.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated I’m Keith Staudohar with Cronin Engineering.  We’re representing the applicant Ryan Main LLC for this 56 unit residential reuse special permit project located on Route 6 and Regina Avenue.  The last time we were here was in June.  I believe that the project’s attorneys, Zarin & Steinmetz, brought the board up to speed on where we were and where we are now.  We had approval back in 2011 and now from the Town Board for the RUSP, residential reuse special permit.  At the last meeting we discussed the project but this board reminded everybody that the public hearing was open from many years ago.  Essentially tonight we’re looking to hopefully schedule a public hearing for the November hearing for approval.  We’ve prepared some documents here in case there’s questions about what it was, what it is, where we’re going or I could just go through everything and explain it or just answer specific questions.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, I gave all the Planning Board members the Resolution from 2011 plus the finding statement.  You should all have, although I’m having trouble locating mine so you may have trouble locating yours, the equivalent of the Environmental Impact Statement that Cronin did back in 2011 or 2010, that would be another document that you should get organized for the public hearing and I would think, obviously since a negative declaration was issued, the assumption is that this project’s environmental impacts in 2017 are no worse than they were in 2011 which keeps that negative declaration viable.  That’s what you can discuss if the board wants you to, at the public hearing rather than tonight.  But we’ve been talking about that you’ve provided a comparison plan.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated we can show that quickly but before that there was a couple of changes since we were here in June, one being the Storm Water Prevention Pollution Plan has been preliminary accepted by Mr. Preziosi, our DEC permits are pending.  Beth Evans & Associates is working on that right now.  One thing that did come up was on Regina Avenue by this Cortlandt Self-Storage section at the south end of Regina, there is a question as to the ownership of Regina Avenue whether it’s Cortlandt Self-Storage or if it’s the Town paper street or what have you, but right now Cortlandt Self-Storage is utilizing that strip and we have provided a memorandum of understanding in this latest submission indicating that the owner of Cortlandt Self-Storage property is willing and will be granting us an easement to access our emergency access for our project goes onto the Regina Avenue behind their gate for this Cortlandt Self-Storage.  So we’re getting an easement for our emergency access to gain access via their gate in perpetuity.  We’re also going to have our own gate on our own property anyway.  So it will be two gates that the emergency services will have to get through to get through that emergency access.  So those are the three things that changed since we met in June.  I’d be glad to answer any questions you have as to wetland mitigation, landscaping.  We prepared a plan showing what was approved in 2011 which is in the upper left corner.  That plan was the subject of the current approval.  We presented that plan to the DEC and they expressed some concerns because our access road out to the Baker Street improvement would have bifurcated the wetland system so they wanted us to come up with an alternative so we kept an alternative which is 11B up at the upper right corner which takes the road to the north side of the pond between the pond and Route 6.  We were before this board several times over the last couple of years, and your consultant Steve Coleman and your consultant AKRF.  We’re in agreement that this was a viable way to go with some conditions, one being we would like the screen along Route 6 which we did as part of our landscaping plan.  So that was the access plan 11B from a couple of years ago and lower left is our current plan which is essentially the same.  There’s been some minor tweaks to building locations and curbs and things of that nature, technical stuff but the current plan that’s before you that’ll be subject to the public hearing is in the lower left.  That’s been submitted.  We’ve got a 30 plus page set of drawings.  We’ve got a major technical review by Mr. Preziosi and his staff, some technical comments that will need to be addressed but we feel at this point that the project is moving forward.  We’re in the final stretch run and we’re ready to go to public hearing and finalize it.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked has Coleman seen the updated wetland plan?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well the sheet that I just put up there now is their wetland mitigation plan and that is the same, more or less, than 2011?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded yes, we always intended on removing the impervious areas that are currently located within the wetland buffer and then within the wetland itself.  There’s remnants of the basketball courts, some buildings, and racquetball court.  There’s a pool. There’s a whole bunch of stuff that’s going to be coming out and those areas will be reclaimed with natural vegetation.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked but the 2011 plan was what Coleman had requested?
Mr. Keith Staudohar responded no, I’m sorry the 2011, the access 11B plan is the one that Coleman reviewed and accepted which is very similar.  We haven’t changed our intent or our mitigation to our landscaping other than to improve what we had back in 2011.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we would refer the final version of these revisions to Steve Coleman to take one last look at before we – for his recommendations.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and then ultimately, as we discussed and with the five year monitoring protocol to make sure it takes. 

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated so we provided an architectural rendering, an artist rendering of the highly units you’re going to look, there’s two types of units: there are units that will be on the high side, that will be tucked in and then roughly about half, 27 of the units will be tucked in with the garage on the basement level and then the other half will be units with walkout basements, some are around the pond, with garages at the first floor elevation.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what’s the ownership of these units?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded all these units will be condominiums.  There’ll be a Homeowner’s Association for the whole project.  There’ll be a clubhouse on site for use by the home owners.  Obviously we have public water, public sewer we’re tying into.  Part of our delay was to make sure that Acadia was going to move forward.  So the owners sat back for a little while making sure that Acadia was going to move forward.  And they started construction, and they are almost close to putting that sewer manhole near our property.  So we’re going full steam ahead right now to gain the approval of this plan.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and the buildings are being demolished?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded we got the demo permits from the Town.  I do not know if they mobilized yet.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so the contractor’s have been mobilized in the past two weeks and the majority of the buildings are down.  They were all condemned so they needed to come down.  

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated that’s good news.  I haven’t been out there for a while.  All those dilapidated buildings are being removed at this time.  I don’t know if you want to look at the landscaping plan.  We’ve provided quite a bit.  We feel we’ve got enough screening for Route 6.

Mr. Robert Foley asked are there any affordables proposed in here?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded not with this current layout, no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s an interesting question.  There has been discussion about that and if you notice on…

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated access plan 11B.  We have talked about it with the owners and they are certainly willing to look into that if the Town is interested in it.  We’ve got a couple of spots we feel we can provide that but that would need further discussion.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated there was some discussion about doing it now and then it was decided not to do it now but I think there was some thought that if the units would be proposed, they’d be where the beer & soda space was previously located.
Mr. Keith Staudohar stated it would be more off the road towards the wetland.  We feel we can get maybe four to six units over there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you are permitted more than 56 units on this site.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated we’re permitted 20%, based on the RUSP, we’re permitted 20% which would be about 11 but right now we have to clear up the issue with the Regina Avenue because we had thought we could get a few units off of Regina Avenue but…

Mr. Robert Foley asked but if there was a percentage of affordables that would be over and above the 56?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, which is permitted by the existing special permit but it was decided not to change this project at this time by introducing new layouts and new buildings, and the applicant wasn’t sure they wanted to do it anyway and it’s not proposed but it may come, to answer your question, it may come someday in the future.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated remember a number of years ago when the economy was bad?  The owners weren’t sure what direction to go in and then a few years ago we toyed with the idea do a commercial here, I don’t know Mike if you were here when we did that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I was yes.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated we were looking at maybe developing some commercial box stores and then that idea went by the wayside and then we wanted to make sure Acadia was going to get approved and start their construction.  So it’s been a lot of different thoughts about what to do here and then finally, with comfort that Acadia is doing their thing and the market for the condos/rentals is strong right now, the owners are steadfast on moving in this direction and finalizing this thing as soon as we can.
Mr. Robert Foley asked you’re saying some would be owner and others rental?  Is that what you just said?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded the option right now – they’re all going to be condominiums…

Mr. Robert Foley asked like Jacob’s Hill where it’s split?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded no, every unit in here will be part of the HOA whether they sell some of them or just rent them out is a different story.  We don’t know exactly what they’re going to do with it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you all come up with a sort of a possible price for these condos in this particular area?

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded when we started this process, I think we were looking at a modest price range, price point and I think we were at 325, 350.  It’s in the mid to low threes.  That was several years ago.  I imagine it might be 375 or so now but modest cost for the units.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you called it at the time “workforce”.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated that was the word.  That might still be valid for this, yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anything else?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so the major change is the location of that road is…

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded that took place a number of years ago, it just didn’t happen now.  It was like four or five years ago but yes the major change from 2011 to now is the north route road is what we call it.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and then Regina Avenue is only emergency…

Mr. Keith Staudohar responded that’s only emergency access.  This is gated both ends for our clientele.  So it’s gated at the Town Center side.  It’s gated at Regina Avenue.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated Keith if you could briefly speak to the status of the road upon completion.  It’s going to be maintained private and at the connection, as you were just alluding to, to Regina is just an emergency access not for cut-throughs and/or pass by trucks.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated there’s not going to be the ability for people to come through our site to cut through to get to the new light.  I don’t think that’s fair to the residents who buy into this.  Right now it’s gated at both ends.  We are designating that connection to Regina Avenue as emergency access only.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we schedule a public hearing on this application on November 8th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we’ll see you next month.

Mr. Keith Staudohar stated thank you all.

PB 2017-7  b.
Application of Nida Associates, Inc. for Preliminary Plat approval for a 2-lot subdivision of an approximately 1 acre parcel of property located at 5 Dove Ct. as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Subdivision Plat prepared for Nida Associates” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated September 20, 2017. (see prior PB 21-08).

Mr. Bob Davis stated good evening.  I’m Bob Davis.  I’m the attorney for the applicant and with me tonight is our engineer Mr. Mastromonaco.  I’ll try to take just about five minutes of your time just to set the scene with a little background.  We’re here tonight, as you know, to request that you schedule the public hearing on the application for the approval of this two-lot subdivision which is intended only to create a separate lot for the existing sewage treatment plant that’s been operating and existing for almost 50 years now.  By way of background, at your June meeting this matter was referred to staff and that resulted in a legal review by Town Attorney Wood who provided the board with his memo of September 19.  Mr. Wood has advised that has a quasi public facility.  That treatment plant need not comply with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and accordingly the proposed lot with the plant does not require any variances.  So based on Mr. Wood’s memo on September 20, Mr. Mastromonaco submitted a revised plat to you which simply moved the boundary line between the two lots to eliminate one setback variance that was required for the lot with the commercial building.  So that lot is now fully compliant.  And since Mr. Wood’s memo, we also submitted to the board my memorandum which provides the background and legal framework for the plant some of which Mr. Wood alluded to in his memo and in my memo we also fully address and eliminate certain concerns which were raised by the Zoning Board when it reviewed a similar proposal for a separate lot for the plant in 2010 which the applicant subsequently withdrew at that time.  That was in connection with a prior subdivision of the property which was ultimately approved as a three lot subdivision by this board I think in 2012 which created the lot with the commercial building and the sewage treatment plant that we now seek to subdivide in a somewhat different configuration.  In particular, the lot for the plant is now over 2,000 square feet larger than was proposed back then and has 9 parking spaces where as then it had none.  Most importantly, unlike the prior application, the Town Attorney has now opined that no variances are required for the plant but it should be noted that notwithstanding that the building and the lot comply with a number of the zoning requirements including falling well within the maximum building height requirement and far exceeding such bulk requirements as the front yard setback requirement, minimum landscape coverage, minimum street buffer, and of course the parking space requirement which is inapplicable actually to this building.  It also bears pointing out as set forth in my memo in September that at the board’s September 2010 meeting this board conducted a public hearing on the prior application as it was at that time a four lot subdivision with a separate lot for the sewage treatment plant.  No member of the public appeared in opposition to that.  One member of the public actually spoke in favor and the board itself indicated that it had no problem at that time with the creation of a separate lot for the treatment plant and suggested that Mr. Klarl convey that opinion to the Zoning Board.  Then as discussed in my memo, in indicating its negative view of the separate lot at that time, the Zoning Board did not have the necessary information before to address its concerns which we’ve now given to you in great detail.  Of course there have been further mitigative developments since then as well.  It’s also important to note, as explained at length in my memo that without this subdivision, the property is simply unmarketable with a commercial building and a sewage treatment plant on the same lot particularly when they’re in different ownerships.  So given all of the history and the factors set forth in my memo including that we’re not proposing any physical changes to the existing site, no changes of use on the site, we would respectfully request that the board ultimately consider rendering its neg. dec. under SEQRA and granting both preliminary and final approval at one time in one Resolution, perhaps at the next meeting if possible but tonight we certainly ask the board just to declare itself lead agency and set the date for the public hearing for your November meeting.
Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we set a public hearing for November 8th.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked the matter of lead agency.  When are we dealing with that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded you can declare your intent to be lead agent.

Mr. Peter Daly asked do we need to?  With that we declare our intent to be lead agent on this application.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and with respect to the question, as Mr. Davis pointed out, we don’t believe that there’ll be any public comment on this hearing so we could have a Resolution ready and then John, just confirming, we have done this in the past to both approve preliminary and final at the same time?

Mr. John Klarl responded in substantial agreement, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we could do that as well.

Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you very much.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 2017-11 c.
 Application of Walker Property Services, LLC for the property of Yorkcon Properties, Inc., for Amended Site Development Plan approval for the construction of a dumpster enclosure located behind the Big Lots Store located at 2990 E. Main St. (Cortlandt Boulevard) as shown on a drawing entitled “Plot Plan-Refuse Details” prepared by Giovanni Sodano, R.A. latest revision dated September 20, 2017. (see prior PB 13-96)

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 26-17.
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record, I think the assistant manager of Big Lots was here for a while but you wore him out.  So we have been in touch with Big Lots and the property owners so they may not be aware of all of the details in the Resolution but they’re generally aware of what’s going on.

Mr. Robert Foley stated it does look a little cleaner back there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, Mike noticed that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated yes, the managing company was instructed to clean more of the property.  They were unaware that their property extended beyond their chain linked fence so they have since been informed and their weekly landscaper has been cleaning up the site and maintaining it in a much better condition.

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 1-14 d. Application of Hudson National Golf Club for amended Site Development Plan approval for modifications to the approved site plan for the golf driving range and teaching facility including changes to the location of the teaching facility building, cart path, practice area, the construction of a new 20’ emergency access road, removal of the northern tee box, changes to the permitted tree removals and additional tree plantings located on an approximately 19.4 acre parcel of property located north of the existing Hudson National Golf Club, south of Hollis Lane, as shown on a drawing entitled “Amended Site Plan, Grading/Layout Hudson National Golf Course Driving Range and Teaching Facility” prepared by Ralph G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated September 15, 2017 and on a 6 page set of renderings and elevations for the proposed teaching studio prepared by Kenneth R. Nadler Consulting, LLC received by the Planning Division on September 20, 2017.
Mr. Bob Davis stated thank you, good evening.  I’m still Bob Davis.  I’m the attorney for Hudson National.  With me tonight, also again, Ralph Mastromonaco our engineer along with arborist Scott Cullen and various club representatives and officers.  Just by way of some background, as you’ll recall, the board granted the club site plan approval and a special permit for its driving range and teaching facility almost two years ago now.  The final Resolution was January 2016.  Since that time, the club has satisfied the conditions of your approval and went ahead and obtained a building permit for the site work which is now substantially complete.  The necessary approvals were also obtained from the Army Corps of Engineers and the County Health Department.  We have all necessary Croton approvals as well.  For example, the wetland mitigation project required by the Army Corps has been completed and the required restrictive covenant for that file, likewise the public pedestrian trail in favor of the residents of Croton and Cortlandt has been completed.  And the easement agreement for that has been filed as well.  During the construction, there were some modifications to the approved site plan which we feel were relatively minor.  They were primarily due to site conditions that were encountered including with respect to rock, refinement of the design a little bit.  Importantly with respect to the emergency access road required, according to the wishes of the Croton Fire Department, which is basically signed off on that emergency road as it exists today.  These modifications have no negative impact at all on any of the environmental issues that your board reviewed for over a year in granting the original approvals and in that regard it’s very important to note, and we’re going to take you on a virtual tour of the site momentarily which I think will be helpful to you.  It’s important to note that the limits of disturbance in the approved plans were in fact very strictly observed.  As indicated in Mr. Cullen’s report dated September 15th, we were able actually to save significantly more trees than were even required by your approval, a net increase in saved trees of 43 trees in particular.  We also decided to eliminate one of the two approved tee areas, the northern tee I think you alluded to which was the subject of much discussion in the prior proceedings so there’s no longer balls being hit in two different directions or at each other.  It should be noted that the people from the Britain Sanctuary next door have regularly visited the site during the work and have been consulted throughout, are very happy with what the club has done particularly since some of the modifications result in moving some things further from their particular property.  There’s certainly been regular Town inspections of the site during the work for which we paid a rather large inspection fee.  There have been at least weekly reports to the staff from Mr. Mastromonaco which have generally included drone reports to show the visual status of the property.  So the modifications that we’re requesting are enumerated in Mr. Mastromonaco’s letter of September 20.  Again, it’s really important to note that these modifications do not negatively affect in any way the storm water drainage, the wetlands, the wetland’s buffers or the steep slopes.  And Mr. Mastromonaco also addressed in a letter he submitted yesterday some comments which Mr. Preziosi had offered to us last week.  We would respectfully request tonight that the board approve the request of changes which could be conditioned of course as was discussed with prior applications in satisfying any remaining technical issues that the staff may have.  In any event, we would fervently request that the staff be able to move forward now with its review of our building permit application for the teaching building which was submitted a while ago and so we might get things started prior to the winter season if at all possible, that would be very important.  Now, I’d like to turn the floor over to Mr. Mastromonaco.  We’ve put together a drone filming of the site as it exists literally today so you can see the work that’s been done.  You can see the changes that we talked about in his letter.  I think a picture’s worth a thousand words and I think that will really answer any questions that you might have but of course, after that, we’re all here to answer any remaining questions as well.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked did you say there was another letter yesterday that was sent in?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that was a technical memo that went to Mike.  We didn’t share that.

Mr. Bob Davis stated but we’ll basically be alluding to that I think in his visual tour that he’s going to give you of the property because he’ll show you some of the issues that were raised and what the facts are of those and explain to you what’s been done.  I think you’ll get a much better view of the property actually then you can even possibly get in person by going out there because some of it’s difficult to access and this will show you quite a few different angles.  You can stop the film and see different things.  You’ll see the limit of disturbance for example with the hay bales and where the tree line is and where the access road is and how that works.  I’ll turn it over to Mr. Mastromonaco and he’ll take you through that.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated good evening.  Basically what we do is – since January we’ve been taking a drone doing our inspections twice a week and we did this yesterday and this is a video.  This is actually yesterday’s golf course driving range.  This is looking straight down the center line.  We’re starting to look on the left side where you’ll see the slope that we’ll plant in the future.  Chris can stop it every now and then.  There might be a stopping point coming up.  It’s a little hard for me to see it here.  It’s easier to see it this way.  Chris, you just stop it right there please? And coming back, same direction.  On the left side is the rock cut.  That whole rock cut has been hydro seeded so that any of the crevices that are left in there will grow.  They’ll grow grass, grow weeds, whatever they want.  If you look there’s a thin line along the toe of the slope, you’ll see that.  Between that line and the toe of the slope will be a no-mow area that personnel will not go in that area.  Now you’re looking back towards the Hudson.  This is the very large teeing area or you could drive from there.  That’s a golf cart path that you’re looking at over here.  That’s how you get to the end of the driving range. It pulls out as a – you can see the whole thing.  You can see the rock slope on the right side.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the tees are at the bottom of the screen?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, we don’t see them at the moment.

Unknown speaker stated you can also see the location of where the building will go on the lower right hand corner there. 

Unknown speaker: stated now you can see the tee area.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked on the driving range you have an area like a little green on the right – you’d said the one was sand traps to the front?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded it’s really designed to look like an actual golf course.  We’ll do it again.  If you have any questions I can answer them.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so the right, the bottom part, that right side, that’s where all those trees were?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, at this point the bottom right.  Can you stop it Chris?

Unknown speaker stated we actually preserved a lot of the trees by keeping that rock slope on the lower part.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think that’s the only reaction when you walked in all the trees and the vines.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated yes, it was a mess, it was a real mess. What you can see on this view, this overhead shot, on the upper part of the screen you’ll see like a black line.  That black line is actually the hay bale silt fence line, the edge of the no disturbance line and the golf course, the constructors were very, very careful about maintaining that position.  As a matter of fact, there wasn’t, in the entire time that we watched this during heavy rain storms, there wasn’t a single episode where there was an erosion problem.  So they’re very good on that.  

Mr. Robert Foley asked so when we site visited that with the golf carts a few years ago, was that the golf cart path on one of these was to the left or to the right?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded it was always there.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I know.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked on which side?

Mr. Robert Foley stated trying to picture where I just saw it but now it’s gone. 

Unknown speaker stated on the right hand side.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that was always there.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated you’ll see it when the drone turns around.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated we were right there on that golf – can you stop it there Chris?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked right here?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated back it up a little bit.  Well you can see the required disturbance line which are those hay bales.  Those were staked out in the field before construction started and everything was contained within that area.  If you want to back it up a little bit, it’s a little easier to see when…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and the trees on the left on your property also?
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded the trees on the left…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the standard trees, on the left side.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated on the left side, that’s all ours.  That’s the conservation easement, the conservation area I should say.  And there’s the hay bales.  You can see that.  Everybody stayed within their boundaries there.  Then that’s the existing golf course right there.  It’s going faster now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you concerned about balls going into the conservation area from the driving range?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Steve, Allen wants to make sure you speak directly into your mic.  He’s having trouble hearing you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re not concerned about having balls going into your conservation area?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no, that area, there’s a little lip on the left side of the range there’s a little lip and the top of that slope will be planted so it’ll stop some balls but there may be some that go there but they would be…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated a lefty on the far left…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it would be hand-picked out of there.  They have to hand pick them out of there.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you planning on doing that?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded yes, they hand pick them.  It’s not a public range.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand but it is a conservation area.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated but they’d be hand-picked out of there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked is there netting proposed?  I can’t remember.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded there wouldn’t be any balls in the conservation area, excuse me, maybe down the slope there might be some balls but that would be quite a stretch to get them into the conservation area.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked was there netting proposed? 
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded the club at the time had the option of putting the net up.  We showed it on the site plan but with Fazio, the golf course architects, and with the memberships we really don’t even need it.  So they just don’t want to put it up.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so the netting in this image would have been on the left hand side?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded would have been on the left hand side and I think that the Saw Mill River Audubon Society was kind of in agreement with that too.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked they specifically asked about that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco this is Ryan Oliver, he’s the…

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated hi Ryan Oliver, golf course superintendent.  I’ve been on site through this whole project and we’ve met with Ann Swaim, the executive director from Saw Mill Audubon and Mike Medias, director of sanctuaries and they were in pretty strong agreement that they didn’t want just a real high net next to their wild life sanctuary.  You can see all the targets are on the right hand side of the range so that’s where we’ve directed the majority of balls.  The short game area is now to the left of the range so guys that are going to be hitting shorter shots.  Teaching facility’s far right.  That back tee is now removed so you don’t have the right handed hitter wanting to push it right.  In between that left target green and the bunker on the left is the opportunity for more plantings, more tree plantings which we would like to do, kind of balances the site with the high walls on the right.  So that’s another opportunity down the road which I think is going to make the site better.  But yes, we’ve decided not to use the net.  It’s not going to look good.  It’s just not right for wild life and we just really don’t think we need it now. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked could someone comment on the tree removals?  Scott, I think, were they at the far end where the other tee box was going to be, one or two of them?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded of all the trees that we were going to preserve, all were preserved except one tree that I believe was down near the revised access road and there were two dogwoods on the upper right as we look at it, behind just a little bit and down to the right of there.  
Mr. Steven Kessler asked by the sand trap there?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded no, farther down and then over to the right.  Sort of in that area, in that clump of trees, there were two dogwoods that were to have been preserved and Ryan can speak to this if I don’t have it correct.  They were so covered with vines that in the vine removal project the trees were damaged and had to be removed.  So those were the only three that should have been preserved and weren’t.  We have a net of 43 additional trees that could have been removed that were saved.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked where are those?  Where generally are those located?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded 9 or 10 of those I think were along the right.  Most were down below our view at the bottom and along the left edge.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I’m confused with what was preserved because you clearly delineated the erosion sedimentation control barrier and the limits of disturbance to the left and the rear of the property, but everything interior that has been removed so which trees are you trying to take credit for trees outside of the limits?

Mr. Scott Cullen responded the hay bales and silt fence were actually installed closer in than the approved limit of disturbance and so there were trees that could have been removed within the limit of disturbance that were behind the hay bales and the silt fence as installed and then there were maybe another dozen trees inside the silt fence, in the area of disturbance that were not removed at the bottom of that slope, the slope to the left.  We walked it.  We did a tree by tree count and we came up with those 43 additional trees.
Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’ll discuss that after the meeting what was conserved and what wasn’t.

Mr. Scott Cullen stated I’d be happy to do that.  Any other questions?

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated yes, right here on the left of the screen there was a pretty large round seat that we couldn’t install the actual silt fence and the hay bales, there’s active water running through there.  So we had to bring that disturbance line, essentially, about 20 feet up the hill to get the silt fence out of that running water.  It was going to be almost impossible to maintain silt coming off the property, storm water coming off the property and that’s just one area where we saved about six trees because we didn’t go all the way to that actual disturbance line and then we kind of bobbed and weaved along that most northerly line of disturbance and saved quite a few, saved quite a few.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked can I just ask from a practical standpoint, you obviously sodded and seeded and turfed a far majority of the driving range, but you haven’t planted towards the far end.  Are you proposing on running trucks now over the freshly laid sod in order to plant the slopes?

Mr. Ryan Oliver responded everything’s been hydro seeded.  We actually did the slopes with native grass and that environet erosion matting so that’s growing.  That’s all stabilized now.  The fairway was sodded and the remainder of the property was hydro-seeded, it’s growing in well.  We need to continue to fertilize those slopes but those have been stabilized solid now for months.  We did that back in late July.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated right but the landscaping plan indicates that they’re supposed to be planted with a mix of shrubs and trees.  I just want to make sure they’re still accessible and still the plan to do that.

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated yes it is certainly accessible.  We’d like to revisit that component and maybe plant those elsewhere, maybe come up with a new landscape plan that shows the same mitigation.  I think we had an equivalent of 10 shrubs to one tree and that was really just because there wasn’t enough room on the property to install the amount of trees that we were supposed to mitigate so we came up with 1000 shrubs.  I think there’s an opportunity on the left hand side now to plant more trees than the 100 that we set out to plant.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked could you just remind us, the left hand side where you can see sort of the sand coming through the grass and that sand trap, is that going to be planted?

Mr. Ryan Oliver responded we would like to plant that with additional plantings, right which isn’t consistent with the original landscape plant.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’re okay with additional plantings.  We want to make sure that you’re going to meet the quantity…

Mr. Ryan Oliver responded there’s going to be more, not only did we save 40 but there’s the opportunity now, because the whole thing shifted to the right with this high wall that we want to put plants…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but look into the rear of the driving range now, is it going to be accessible since you did sod the entire fairway of the driving range?  I’m just making sure that you’re not going to have to tear everything up to get back.

Mr. Ryan Oliver responded it’s not ideal.  We wanted to plant the landscapes later in the year.  There’s going to be some tearing of the sod and what have you but…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated and the storm water infiltration units, because I don’t see any catch basins visible from this aerial.

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated they’re all there.  They’re certainly there.  This is a pretty high view of that but they’re all there.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so for our analysis is it possible, of course it’s possible, for you to capture one of these aerial views and to superimpose over that what the landscaping plan was supposed to have been and then you can provide us another one superimposing your new plan on that so that we can take a look at what was supposed to be there and what you guys are planning now to do.
Mr. Ryan Oliver responded yes sure.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated we’re not changing the landscaping plan right now.  They were thinking about changing the landscaping plan.  If they do that, they would come back to this board for that.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated no I think the landscaping plan that was approved, is it there?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated they haven’t installed it.  This is under construction right now so really Mr. Creighton we’re here because essentially from our point of view, all we did was we moved the teaching facility over to the right.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I must have misheard.  I thought I heard “we’re revisiting this.”

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated no, we just want to move the teaching facility to the right and we went to the Building Department and they said “you’ve got to come back to the Planning Board because you moved the building to the right.”  So that’s really why we’re here. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s more than that.  You changed cart paths.  You did a lot more than just move…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded well yes, in order to get to the teaching facility or moved we had to move the cart path…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but you also covered the tees on the other end.  It’s not like, all due respect, you think they’re small changes but – and I’m not saying they’re not small changes but to say they’re not significant, they’re significant.  I’m not saying they’re bad changes but they are more than insignificant changes.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated Mr. Kessler principally it was the driving force was moving the building over and we made a list of every little change, it was in your packet, every little change.  We made that list.  We’re not hiding that.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I understand but it’s a lot of changes.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated but the biggest one is moving the building over.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated well getting rid of the other set of tees is pretty big.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s a positive thing.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not saying it’s a bad thing, I’m just saying there’s a lot of changes.  I don’t mean to be pejorative about it.  All I’m saying is one thing begot another thing and there are a lot of changes.

Mr. Steve Stewart stated I’m Steve Stewart, president of the club.  If I could make a couple of comments?  One of the reasons that we thought it was best to move the teaching facility from what I call the left part of the range to the right part of the range, is it’s much more visible to the Saw Mill River Audubon area over on the left so it’s less intrusive and the ability to have balls kept over on the right hand part of the driving range is obviously much greater over there.  That was the big driver for that move.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and again, what was the length of the driving range?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded 330 yards.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is that a slope on the left side that goes down?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded it is.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so I would imagine there would be a lot of balls that are just going to roll down that slope.

Mr. Steve Stewart responded yes, and they will be hand-picked.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked hand-picked?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that’s what I was getting at.  Looking at this view from the left hand side, around that sand trap is going to be planted and it was required to be planted by the approval, correct?  But what you just said Mr. Oliver just said they may want to change that. 

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated we don’t have to change it, it’s just not done yet.  It’s under construction and there’s a plan to landscape it just the way we showed you guys on the original site plan.  It just hasn’t been done yet. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just visually, on the left side on the left side of that sand trap that’s on the left there, there’s planting going…

Mr. Steve Stewart stated any planting that goes on the left side is going to further deter balls from going down that slope…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but that’s what was supposed to be planted with a combination of trees and thousands of shrubs as was alluded to earlier in the conversation.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s just what I want for the record.  You have to plant what the Planning Board approved.  If you don’t want to plant what the Planning Board approved, even if you want to plant is way better, the Planning Board has to approve it.

Mr. Oliver stated we understand.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and that planting narrows the driving range….
Mr. Steve Stewart stated it’s going to be a narrow strip of planting along that left side but…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked on top of the hill there before it slopes down, is that what we’re talking about?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded correct, yes. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked can we shift focus a little bit to the area, the teaching facility and the rock cut as the rock cut was originally meant to be graded out one on one.  What I want to ensure and I think this video’s been great to show some of it, but I feel this is not a substitute for a field visit just making sure that area to the right, which Chris can just circle real quick with the mouse, was meant to be a vine eradication zone and those trees were meant to be reserved.  I think it was called as zone A in the approved landscaping plan and those were required to be preserved and then enhanced with future planting.  I just want to make sure that the quantity of trees that were to be preserved have been and that we’re still able, based upon the new rock cut, have a substantial amount of space to plant new trees that were approved.  Because that’s what our inspector that was out on the field saw that the rock cut and the excavation and the blasting took some additional trees down in that location…
Mr. Steve Stewart stated there’s going to be no trees down in that location where the teaching center…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated no to the right, on the top level of the rock cut.  In the landscape plan I think it was called zone A.  I may have the letter wrong.  There was supposed to be a vine eradication program implemented which you had stated before caused the removal of a few other trees which we all understand construction, it happens.  But I just want to make sure that there’s still ample space in order to plant between that top of rock cut and the existing cart path to the right of that, what was shown on the approved plan.

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated absolutely, but there’s a line of disturbance wasn’t changed, it was…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated but the rock cut came back further now which we want to make sure that trees were preserved were meant to be preserved and that the quantity of plantings that were supposed to be installed along that upper level can still be planted.

Mr. Ryan Oliver responded absolutely, very comfortably.  We actually preserved more trees with the vine removal than was anticipated. 

Unknown speaker stated the area up top, those trees – quite a few of those trees on the right side were slated for removal in the original plan.  More were preserved than was slated for – so what you’re looking at now shows a net positive of trees preserved.  I know that.  There were a heavy encroachment of vines.  There was a lot of invasive species there that Saw Mill River Audubon asked us to assist with on other sides of the property, mostly the hardy kiwi so when those vines were removed, some of the trees in the lower right of the, right there, were actually removed.  The trees were destroyed.  They were in terrible shape.  I think Scott can tell you that but the net positive remains.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so based upon the email that I had sent out to Mr. Mastromonaco last week, what we’d like to do is set up a field visit with Town staff Scott and our tree arborist to confirm the report that was submitted that the trees were saved in excess of what was shown on the plans and then we would work with modifying the landscape plan if the club decided to go that route.  As we all stated, the intent is to plant what was minimally approved.  If you guys want to go above and beyond, fantastic.  We just want to make sure that everything is going to be planted in combination with this permit, the site plan approval, and the future approval for the teaching facility.

Mr. Steve Stewart stated I guess our main goal is to move forward with the building permit process for the teaching facility with the move from the left hand side of the range over to the right hand side of the range. 

Mr. Bob Davis stated I think basically what we’re asking to amplify what Mr. Stewart is saying in showing you what’s happened here, we’d like to get an approval to go forward by this board with the modifications for which we’ve come to you, subject of course to the condition that Mr. Preziosi just stated confirming the trees and obviously if something’s been done wrong, which we don’t believe it has been because we’ve looked at it very carefully with respect to the trees, we’ll rectify that.  We’ve already proposed four trees to replace the two dogwoods.  The tree that was removed in Croton, there was a permit for and any trees removed in Croton as part of that permit are being replaced.  We would just like to move forward.  We came before you, as Ralph said, primarily because we changed the location of the building that did implicate some other things, most of which were positive actually.  We’d just like to get a conditional approval of your board on the modifications subject to working out any technical things with staff and we’d certainly like to get moving forward with the review of our building permit application which we see no reason not to be able to do that at this point.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated our director of Code and myself we both took a quick glance at the submissions for the building application.  I believe Martin sent out a couple quick emails to your architect a while back as far as trying to classify and coordinate what sort of occupancy under State Building Code the building would entail and then we’d also just followed up with our standards that are obviously you need your Health Department approvals for the well and sanitary system as part of the building permit application.  Fire access was discussed so now your proposal is to leave the temporary construction access as your permanent path.  My other concern would just be with the additional impervious that’s being placed that it’s been increased to the required storm water so a separate mitigation plan, we’re not talking a completely revised SWPPP, we’re just talking about minor modifications that would have to be addressed.  Ralph and I will work out the specifics.  But outside of that, the other big item would just be making sure that you have access to the building up that hill within the requirements of the State Building Code.
Mr. Bob Davis stated as Steve pointed out, the fire department in Croton has signed off on that.  We expect the letter any day now from that.  They promised that the construction vehicles have been using that…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated they don’t sign off.  They just make a recommendation that it’s accessible.  It still has to meet the State Building Code as far as grades and everything else.

Mr. Bob Davis stated correct.  They’re going to send us a letter that they’re fine with it.  We do have the Westchester County Health Department approval, that’s in place.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated that’s a requirement of the building permits so if you have it please submit it.

Mr. Bob Davis stated understood.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I guess the question is, and they may not know the answer, that I believe we are reviewing the building permit application for the teaching facility.  And I believe that as long as the drawings that we listed on the Resolution are the same, which I assume they are, the architectural advisory council has blessed the elevations of the building already that was sent to them.  Correct, it’s the same build?  Because that was a long time ago that the AARC signed off on the elevations.
Mr. Steve Stewart stated there were a couple of modest changes with that and the first was when the building was going to be located on the left, there was going to be a basement where mechanicals and a ball washing area was going to be.  With the move to the right, that’s basically all granite.  We’d have to blast to put that basement in so the amendment there is to put the ball washing machine on the side of the building and put it essentially under a little shed area, put the mechanicals up in what is effectively the attic of the building.  There was a covered porch that was going to be in the back of the building and we’ve just moved that simply to the side of the building.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated your architect needs to convey that to our building inspector because that was a question as to what the attic space was going to be used for.

Mr. Steve Stewart stated they should have those.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated not the elevations, the actual – if you’re looking for a building permit, the actual architecturals. 

Mr. Steve Stewart stated he sent them.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and our ARC reviews things very quickly.  I’ll just resend it.  It’s not an issue.  But I didn’t look at it closely enough to see that it’s different than what they looked at six months or so ago.

Mr. Steve Stewart stated he sent them I would say five weeks ago.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked to the Building Department?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded yes.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we can double check that tomorrow because that was my understanding.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I’ll double check it tomorrow.

Mr. Steve Stewart stated he’s just on an airplane heading to Europe this evening otherwise he would have been here.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we have looked at some submissions, some material that was submitted.

Mr. Bob Davis stated so basically what we’d like to do again is to put these remaining I’s to dot and T’s to cross which are not very significant with staff so we can move forward with a conditional approval of the modifications.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked did we still want to do a site visit?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know, it’s up to you guys.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I’m not sure what you can see beyond what’s on the drone.  The drone gives you much more accessibility than when you’re on the site because of the slopes and so forth.  You’re getting a view of what’s – that’s the entire property in the Town of Cortlandt.  

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we had recommended at the work session to have a site visit because we did not have this aerial on the drone video so it’s still up to the board if they still…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think the board is satisfied that they can see more than – you’re satisfied that’s okay with me.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked but you and the staff are going to be going out there?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded yes, I’d like to set up a meeting with the golf course and their arborist with our town arborist to convey and confirm that all the trees were preserved as indicated in the memorandum and then we would hear them out as to their proposed landscape changes and alterations.  If we feel that it’s a significant change we’ll refer them back to come back to discuss with the board but else wise, as long if they keep saying the minimum required number of plantings are installed, anything above and beyond would be a benefit…

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated there’s still a lot of conditions that are going to come later to approve it.  It’s okay with me if they go out but as long as we’re satisfying all of these issues before…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I would just like a better idea of what that stand of trees and shrubs will look like on the left side.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I think that’s depicted on our existing landscaping plan.  It’s not changing.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s not changing.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated well there’s no more netting I think.

Mr. Bob Davis stated I don’t think the netting was ever depicted visually on the plan.  It was indicated as being there.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated we understood that it was going to be capturing the balls.  So if we weren’t relying on the landscaping to capture the balls.

Mr. Bob Davis stated that’s also why Mr. Stewart explained they’ve changed most of the activity to the other side.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing I want to double check is, and correct me if I’m wrong, but after this was approved by the Planning Board I believe Anthony Zaino fully developed a landscape plan.  I’m not sure the Planning Board…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t think I have it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because that plan was developed because Mr. Cullen’s report was verbal and then I believe, at Mike’s insistence, it was developed into a plan which we have.

Mr. Bob Davis stated well it was one of the conditions of approval.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I don’t think it ever got back to the Planning Board so we’ll get that back to you because that shows, as we discussed, what they have to plant on the left hand side unless they want to plant something different.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated even if you could overlay it on this kind of picture which is a lot better looking at it on your blueprints here.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so the landscape plan that was approved as a condition of the previous Planning Board application approval, if you’re looking at this fairway, everything to the left of the screen it goes downhill from that first sort of pot bunker all the way down, it’s all going to be landscaped with a combination of low shrubberies and trees.  That’s going be interspersed.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked is it just on the line?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated no it’s all interspersed.  I think it’s over a thousand shrubs…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this is the plan.

Mr. Bob Davis stated and we’re not seeking to change that.  That’s not part of the reason why we’re before you tonight.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what would you say it is?  Is it going to be 20 feet wide, 50 feet wide?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s the whole slope from the bottom of the slope that’s protected with the hay bale all the way to the top of the fairway.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated got it.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s all intermixed with a variety of shrubs, grasses, and trees. 

Mr. Ryan Oliver stated a 1000 shrubs, 250 some ornamental trees.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated Chris was mentioning it, it was prepared by a licensed landscape architect at our insistence to take the written report from Scott Cullen and create a drawing with actual landscaping, shrubs, botanical mains, etc.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked that was area B right, what we’re talking about?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated this is a very good visual representation.  Scary is not the right word but that doesn’t show any landscaping at all and then this plan reflects the thousands of things that they have to plant and we’ll make sure you get a copy.

Mr. Bob Davis stated a 1000 shrubs, a 100 trees, 250 small trees, that’s where we’ve always depicted planning to be and we’re not asking for a single change in that. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I do believe staff wants to go out and check the corner near the teaching facility because that’s where your engineer…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated that was what was specifically called out on the landscape plan to be preserved and if everything checks out as discussed then that’ll be excellent.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can we come to some kind of resolution here about the site visit?
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded I think we should refer it back…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s fine with me.  

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I think I heard from the board that you would like to see some of the landscaping overlaid with this aerial for the next meeting which would be a good suggestion to help with the visualization of what’s going to go there.  Then, in the interim we will go out in the field and we will check to make sure that the trees have been preserved and then come up and discuss with the golf course if they wanted to modify it any further.  If need be recommend revisions to a landscape plan.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what is the board’s feeling about the teaching facility building, the actual building itself?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked the square footage remains roughly the same right?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked the square footage is the same?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded there’s a little bump out.  Again, we were going to have the ball washing machine and all storage underneath.  We’re not going to put a basement there because we’d have to blast it so we basically have a little projection that’s on the right hand side which is effectively a little bump out of the…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so the square footage is less because you don’t have a basement.

Mr. Steve Stewart responded well correct, yes.  If you count the basement yes.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so wider footprint, not as many stories.

Mr. Steve Stewart responded exactly.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the bump out is going on these drawings?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked also then, the actual structure, elevation wise, is that set down below the tee areas?  How does that – I can’t tell by this…

Mr. Steve Stewart responded no, it’s on the bottom right hand side where that dirt is, that’s where the teaching building would go.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so it’s level with where the tee…

Mr. Steve Stewart responded correct. 

Mr. Bob Davis stated we’ve moved it from one side to the other, from the left corner to the right corner.

Mr. Robert Foley asked it’s not set down elevation wise?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded no it’s on the same grade as the tee there.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think Mike’s position was that the Planning Board maybe hadn’t totally approved as part of the approval of the driving range, the teaching facility.  And then based on some of the minor modifications in shifting, he wanted to bring it back to you and I guess the club is saying – but I believe we’re already reviewing it but you want to ensure that staff is continuing to review the actual building permit application.

Mr. Bob Davis stated well that’s certainly the most important thing but we’re also asking because we were in fact sent back to the Planning Board, we have an application if you will for an amendment to our original site plan primarily because of the building but we’ve of course removed the tee which is a positive impact…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t think that we’re comfortable approving all of the amendments no matter how minor you think they are, tonight.  But I’m trying to figure out a way, if the Planning Board doesn’t have a particular interest in the fact that the teaching facility shifted from left to right and if the Architectural Advisory Committee signs off on the revised elevations if that could move forward.
Mr. Bob Davis stated it shifted 50 feet.  We understand that the board wants to take a look at the landscaping even though, frankly that’s not part of our application, we’re not asking any amendment to it so it’s a little difficult to understand that because we met the condition of approval but if we could get something akin to one of the other applications where the board might authorize contingent on your inspection, authorize the preparation of a Resolution approving the amendments for the next meeting and at the same time we’re running parallel to continue to get the building permit reviewed so that once we get the board’s approval we can go forward, hopefully, with the construction and the building permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think that’s what the board is saying.  If we go out on the staff level site inspection and find all sorts of problems which I don’t think we will then that would be different.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s what I was going to suggest that we prepare a Resolution for the next meeting and for us to see the landscape plan even though it’s not…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one of the reasons they wanted to have it overlaid on that, and if you could still do it that might be helpful, but it’s because is they never saw Zano’s plan.  We’ll make sure that gets to them.

Mr. Bob Davis stated we’ll endeavor to do that for sure.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked just a quick question, the building, for elevations that’s facing which way?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded the front of the building, it’s basically a large garage so that those big doors that you see they open up and they look out towards the range.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked people will be able to get out from there right, those studios?

Mr. Steve Stewart responded yes, so inclement weather and in the winter those doors will open up and be able to hit balls out into the snow.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s just we have the things that say front elevation, rear elevation but there’s no perspective on what that means.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so would there be a need for a site visit then?

Ms. Loretta Taylor Bob, look if you wanted to go with them during the day.  I’m sure they won’t mind.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I’ve already asked but I think he answered, the new location for the shift of the actual teaching facility over here to the lower left.  You’re saying it’s on the same plain, the same level as with the green where the tees are?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded I think what was not conveyed maybe clear enough during the discussion is that the relocation and the shifting of the teaching facility does not necessitate the expansive removal of additional trees and/or extensive regarding into the slope which would be to the bottom of the screen.  If what I just said is correct.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I don’t have to go but let know when you’re going to go.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s not a matter that you have to go.  Most of us don’t want to go but if you wish to go you’re a member of the board and I think you should be able to go with them.

Mr. Robert Foley stated they’ll let me know.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated sure.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff to do their site visit and determine that all the conditions have been met, or they’re comfortable with the new plan and then prepare, if everything’s okay, prepare a Resolution for the next meeting, approval.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Bob Davis and team stated thank you very much.


*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS:

PB 2017-15
a. Application of JFWF Cortlandt, LLC and the Florentine Ida Sellecaerts Revocable Trust & the Trust of Florentine Ida Sellecaerts of the Tiber Gerstl Revocable Trust, Robert H. Runde, Trustee for a Lot Line Adjustment between two lots located at 180 Old Albany Post Rd., and 130 Quaker Bridge Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Lot Line Change Tax Lot 2 and Tax Lot 5” prepared by Daniel T. Merritts, LLS dated September 14, 2017.

Ms. Joan Francy stated hello, I’m Joan Francy.  I’m here with my husband Bill Francy.  We live at 180 Old Albany Post Road.  We are looking for a lot line adjustment between two lots: our lot and 130 Quaker Bridge Road which is up on Quaker Bridge Road, the house, and their property descends down over the aqueduct and down to the entrance of our property.  This plan, which is done by Merritts, takes into account all the lot rules in effect.  What we are hoping for is to get an approval in one meeting due to the fact the house is on the market and they may or may not have a buyer but they don’t want this lot line adjustment to get in the way of a closing. Practically speaking it makes a lot of sense for my husband and I to own this property because it’s right outside of our entrance.  The 130 Quaker Bridge Road can’t even see this.  They don’t come down.  The roads are different and it’s not kept up and so it affects our neighborhood, it affects the entrance to our property.  We have had neighbors complain.  I have a letter from an adjacent neighbor that is in approval of us to have this lot line approved.  So I can give this to you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll take it.

Ms. Joan Francy stated yes, just leave it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll take it later.

Ms. Joan Francy stated so practically speaking it makes sense for us to maintain it.  There’s things falling all over it.  It’s never kept up.  The other thing I wanted to bring up is in the summer – our road is on the Croton River and as you can see a lot of our property, if you look at -- we’re bordering quite a bit on the Croton River.  The entrance to the property, part of this little sliver, the lot line many people park illegally there and they cut through our property down to the Croton River.  This property is not maintained.  They don’t have any signage or private property.  They’re not there to see it.  I think you may or may not know there are drownings in the Croton River almost one every summer and so we have an interest in keeping signage on it, keeping it looking right and so it makes, practically speaking, it makes sense for us.  We have an agreement with the Trust who owns the property.  They’re interested in getting and selling it to us.  I gave you that documentation as well. That’s why we’re here today.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think I can speak to some confidence that no member of the board has ever been at the dead end of your road.  I happened to go down to the dead end because I was going to the allergist with my daughter so I figured, what the heck, I would drive all the way down there and as we mentioned at the work session that the house is way up on Quaker Bridge so they wouldn’t even be – I don’t disagree that it does make sense for the lot line adjustment.  I did notice that your property is gated. If you acquired this, would you think of moving the gate further up to stop people from parking down there, to stop them from trespassing?

Ms. Joan Francy stated not really.  I think between our neighbor, the one who wrote the letter the Damato’s and we pretty much monitor it and we know when there’s a car there that shouldn’t be so we don’t want to go to the expense of moving a stone pillared and gate.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s a big gate.

Ms. Joan Francy stated a lot of expense.  We’re not planning to do anything with it other than just keep it looking neat.  It’s right at the entrance of our property and also monitoring it as you would if you lived there to make sure there’s no trespassing.  That’s our interest right now in that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one issue that came up at the work session, I did speak to your surveyor, is the road/driveway comes through the Town of Ossining, then briefly through the Town of New Castle and then into the Town of Cortlandt.  According to this you would be acquiring the bed of that road.  Right now the bed of that road is owned by the neighbors and through this lot line adjustment you’d be acquiring it.  Who maintains that section of road?  We don’t believe it’s a Town road.

Ms. Joan Francy responded well part of that road we do own presently and then 130 owns a portion of it, a sliver of it too.

Mr. John Klarl asked do you have a target closing date?

Ms. Joan Francy responded yes, I think mid-November.  If we don’t get approval by mid-November here…

Mr. John Klarl stated we talked about at our staff meeting about having a meeting with Mr. Merritts…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I had a phone conversation with Mr. Merritts and he said, we have to double check with him, but he did not find any reference to the ownership of that road in any of his research. 

Ms. Joan Francy responded no, my understanding according to what our attorney says is it’s a Town road.  The garbage truck does come down and pick up our garbage.  The mail truck comes down to our mail and so it is a public road.  Everyone along the road, their property stretches across the road…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’d have to follow up with your surveyor because if you’re saying it’s a Town road there should be a right-of-way line delineating the portion of the road to private driveway which is not shown on the survey.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the way the survey looks now it looks like it’s a privately owned road.  

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if it’s a Town right-of-way…

Mr. John Klarl asked has somebody ordered a title report?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked has anyone ordered a title report?

Ms. Joan Francy responded no.

Mr. John Klarl stated that would be very helpful.  We were going to meet with Mr. Merritts at our staff meeting and get his idea on certain aspects of the lot line adjustment.  That would be able to prove for him what he needs from the Town.

Ms. Joan Francy asked what is Merritts’ I don’t understand his…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded well the drawing may need to be revised.  If that road is a Town road and it’s a Town right-of-way then additional lines should be added to the drawing showing that you, while the driveway goes across your property you don’t actually own it.  This drawing implies that you own it.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated this is implying that it’s a driveway and you had alluded to that you felt that it was a Town road so there needs to be a little bit of research and distinction made on this drawing.

Ms. Joan Francy stated if it should drag out past November we’re wasting our time so…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well our next meeting is Wednesday, November 8th so I believe that subject to us resolving that issue we could have a Resolution of Approval at the November 8th meeting.  And that is pre your closing I believe.

Ms. Joan Francy stated just prior, hopefully…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I suspect this map is right and it’s not a public road.  I believe it is a driveway so we’d have to just clarify that with Mr. Merritts.

Ms. Joan Francy asked if it is a private road then this would be approvable?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded in either case it’s approvable I believe, it’s just what revisions would have to be made to the drawing by the surveyor and we’ll talk to him.  If revisions need to be made, he’ll make then in time that the Planning Board could approve it at their November 8th meeting.

Mr. Robert Foley asked when is your closing?

Mr. Francy stated mid November we believe.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated November 18th I thought I heard.

Ms. Joan Francy stated November 18th, that sounds about right, I believe.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this has to go back to staff.  We’re probably going to refer it back at this point.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated refer it back and prepare a Resolution.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this application back to staff for resolution of the road ownership, etc.

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley asked on the question, also have a prepared Resolution of approval?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if you want to give us a call tomorrow, we’ll explain what happened.

Ms. Joan France asked can I ask you one question, does that mean it’s a closed hearing in November?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, there’s no public hearings.  If everything goes according to plan you’ll be handed a Resolution of Approval in November.  Now that will probably have a condition that you need to file corrected property deeds to reflect the new size of the lots but that would probably having to be done as part of your closing anyway.

Ms. Joan Francy stated yes understood, we will do that. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think John made the point of getting a title search.  Is that correct?  Now you have some time to do it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated again, you should be in touch with staff and they will outline for you the things that we’re going to need, that they’re going to need in order to move this forward to the proper time.

Mr. John Klarl stated have Mr. Merritts call us.

Mr. Joan Francy stated Mr. Merritts call you, yes.  Very good, thank you.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Joan Francy stated thank you very much.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good luck to you.

    PB 2017-16
b. Application of the McDonald’s Corporation, for the property of Cortlandt Town Center, LLC for amended Site Development Plan approval for interior and exterior building renovations, modifications to the parking area, ADA upgrades and changes to the ordering equipment for the existing McDonald’s Restaurant located at 3039 E. Main St. at the Cortlandt Town Center Shopping Center as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Preliminary Site Plan for McDonald’s Side by Side” prepared by Aaron M. Bodenschatz, P.E. dated April 3, 2017 (see prior PB 40-94).

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you want to sort of discuss with us what these changes, the side by side concept…
Mr. Alan Roscoe stated I would love to, yes.  For the record, Alan Roscoe.  I’m the Northeast Regional Manager for this program.  I represent Core States Architecture and Engineering in this matter but we’re here on behalf of McDonald’s.  Briefly I’ll describe the program that we’re under here.  The side by side program, just as an overview, it’s the freshening of the brand and a modernization of the look and feel of the restaurants as well as the experience.  It consists of three main elements: there’s interior renovations which are largely driven by ADA compliance issues but they are updating a lot of the counter spaces and the condiment areas.  The exterior of the building usually gets a complete re-cladding or re-skinning.  In this case it’s not exception here.  The exterior on the site work side, we do ADA compliance issues for the parking, try to get a pathway out to the public right-of-way, if we have that opportunity and then the biggest element that’s on the site work side is the upgrade to the drive-through.  There’s two different kinds.  In this case the tandem works out the best because of the space issues that we have.  So what’s going to happen is that we’re going to have two new modern digital menu boards and ordering points on the existing drive-through lane.  The site configuration will stay largely the same.  The traffic pattern will be the same.  We are resurfacing some of the ADA spaces with concrete for better elevation and slope controls so we can ensure compliance.  It’s just really a modernization of the look and the feel of the restaurant that’s part of this remodel.  The color tones will be much more neutral and the signage is a lot more understated than at present.  So there’s a lot of benefits and improvements to the overall look and customer experience.  So that’s the program.  I can go into some of the details for this site.  There’s a very small, minor addition, probably 50 square feet or so that’s just completing out an area that’s a little abatement correct at this moment in time, in the kitchen area.  That’s the change you can see on the site plan in there.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where exactly would be the…

Mr. Alan Roscoe stated right where the mouse is, it’s right at the pay window.  It’ll be a kitchen improvement interior which drives the need to box that area out.
Mr. Robert Foley asked did you say they would be tandem or side by side?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded the side by side is the name of the program and it’s not shown on this drawing because of the site constraints that we have but we call it a tandem because we have two ordering points.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the only thing that’s changing is there’s going to be two places for you to talk and order your food.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can you point to them on here?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where are they?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s just like a menu board.  What number is the menu board?

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked you’re still having a single server.  You’re having two order boards in tandem, back to back not side by side.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but it’s still a single lane of cars?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded a single lane of cars, yes.  The tandem just refers to the two points, not the size or the configuration of the drive-through.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated two message boards serviced by a single server at a window.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked so the expectation though is that they move through faster?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded yes, it’s more efficient because you can take two orders simultaneously.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because the Planning Board does have a concern that this facility, the queue does back up into the parking lot, not the whole parking lot but where the cars are backing in and…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it bisects the travel lane that leads to the main building and then other end of it would be when you do have the – you still have a single server handing out food, are you moving or relocating the waiting areas for cars if they have to get further service?  There’s a pull off area for delivery?
Mr. Alan Roscoe responded right, every restaurant has two or three, what we call reserved spots so they can pull through and park and then the food will be brought out to them.

Mr. Mike Preziosi asked so those reserved spots would be on the Town Center’s property so you have the authorization and approval from…

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded right, we have lease agreements to share parking with mall ownership and also to perform these upgrades.

Mr. Robert Foley asked they would be in the back there?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded they’d be on the slope facing Route 6.

Mr. Robert Foley asked they’re not around on the other side of the building?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded I think currently now they’re right in front of the server window.

Mr. Robert Foley asked not where you have the car shows?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you have any color renditions of this so that we could see what it is that you’re trying to do?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded yes, I have something with me if you’d like to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked just to confirm, I was looking at the set that you delivered.  Are there elevations in that set?  I don’t believe there are.

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded no but there are with the set that we supplied to the Building Department.  But I have, again, I have something I can show you to give you a flavor.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s good for the moment but I think I would want it as part of the official submittal from McDonald’s.

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded certainly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so get those to me.  And does the play area go or stay?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded it stays.  They’ll be probably some new activities, they call them toys but…

Mr. Robert Foley asked and that’s all inside?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded it’s all interior, correct. There’ll be some new furniture, new seats and tables in the dining area but we’re not expanding the operation at all.  We’re not intensifying the use.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so when you do the renovations, you close the place down?  

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded typically yes.  Obviously we try to stay open as long as we can so if the drive-through window is open we’re doing interior renovations and vice versa.  If we’re doing drive-through upgrades, the lobby is still open.  Typically there is a three to five day closure where it’s fully closed so they can do some of this.  But we try to stay as open as possible and serve the customers.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think staff feels that this is a relatively minor application.  A lot of it has to do with building permit stuff but you should see the building elevations and those would be referred to the Architectural Advisory Council.  Similar to the other case, I think you could refer him back but then we could prepare a Resolution for the next meeting as long as nothing happens.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I definitely want to see more of what’s being proposed here and I don’t get the feeling that I’m seeing it.  I don’t even understand why the cars are way over here.  Where do you go to pick up your order?

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I think you need to provide a cross-section of the order location, just a little illustrative rendering of how the cars are going to line up and stand up at the service window.  Just provide the elevations for additional information.

Mr. Alan Roscoe stated okay, certainly.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’d like to raise another issue and it’s not related to this but the parking lot for McDonald’s on the other side is often – there’s cross traffic happening in there for people who are leaving further down and it’s not clear where to exit and you find people driving across parking spots and weaving in and out of lanes and parking areas to exit near the exit that goes out to Route 6.  I don’t know if you can take a look at that but I just think that’s just an accident waiting to happen in that area.  Maybe it’s better signage to be provided or maybe marking the travel lanes a little bit more.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that would require some cooperation with the Cortlandt Town Center I believe and they’ve authorized you to make this application and share parking with them.  Maybe we need to talk with Tom Eickoff as well because they do sort of race down that area to go towards the post office.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and when they’re coming out of I think Marshall’s, there’s a lane there and they zoom – and if you’re pulling out or trying to get out into the same lane that somebody’s coming up behind you, if they’re going too fast, you could get hurt.  There are people zipping back and forth in various areas, criss-crossing and it can be problematic at certain times of the day.

Mr. Robert Foley stated when you have a build-up entering the drive-through, at certain hours they’re in the middle of the parking lot, cars are cutting through the parking lot to go to the post office or whatever stores are down there. 
Mr. Alan Roscoe responded right, and making the drive-through more efficient should resolve that right.  Getting back to your point about paving markings and the likes, that is part of this program.  There’s all new signage, all new pavement markings will be upgraded so if we need to work out something with mall ownership we’re happy to do that.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked are you resurfacing the parking lot as well?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded the portion that we’re touching which is basically that grey shaded area where we’re reconfiguring the ADA spaces, so that’ll become a concrete surface where the physical parking spaces are and then we’ll blend with asphalt paving to match existing grades that’s shown in the shaded region.  We naturally want to minimize the site work but that will be the extent of our site work.  The pathway it’s just painted striping out to the sidewalk.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked I still think to refer this back and we’ll see how we do.  Talking to Tom Eickoff probably from the Town Center, getting the idea about the elevations, we’ll see if it’s ready for approval next month or maybe not but can you get up here for a meeting with us?

Mr. Alan Roscoe responded yes, I come out a couple of times a week so no problem.  And I can just give you a flavor now if you want to just view it really quickly.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m not sure that – do you want a flavor now?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t think so.

Mr. Alan Roscoe stated we’re all right here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated provide it to me and I’ll provide it to them.

Mr. Alan Roscoe stated all right, very well.

Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chairwoman I make a motion that we refer this back.

Seconded.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated on the question, are we directing staff to take a shot at preparing a Resolution?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Robert Foley stated refer this back and prepare a possible Resolution for approval at the November meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Alan Roscoe asked procedurally, if this gets referred to Architectural Commission…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it’s just via email.  They don’t really need…

Mr. Alan Roscoe asked it’s not a separate process?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, there’s not a fee or anything like that.  You get it to me and I email it to them and they comment on it, and they’re only advisory to the Planning Board.  They don’t have approval authority.

Mr. Alan Roscoe stated glad to hear.  Thank you very much.  Appreciate it.
PB 2017- 17
c. Application of Joseph Thompson of DeGraw & DeHaan, for the property of 2141 Crompond Road, LLC, for amended Site Development Plan approval for a change of use and a façade change for the Orange Bank & Trust Company as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Christopher E. DeHaan, R.A. dated August 31, 2017 (see prior PB 18)

Mr. Joe Thompson stated good evening.  My name’s Joe Thompson, architect for Orange Bank and Trust, our client, who’s proposed tenant at 2141 Crompond and currently vacant space.  It’s an application for a change in use.  I believe, Chris, the former use might have been a dance studio.  The proposed use is a bank, more of a financial office to occupy the current space as it exists.  Signage would be in keeping with the existing style, size, lettering and font that is currently on the building so we conform with the previously approved signage guidelines.  And we’re proposing one minor alteration to the façade on our tenant space.  You can see on the bottom left pane, the window in that diagram.  It’s basically a night depository which would allow drop off and deposits in the evening for the bank necessary for them to function.  That would be inserted into solid insulated panel.  We’d specify a dark bronze and a nice finish to match the existing storefront so it blends.  On the interior we’d be making significant improvement to the existing space to fit it up appropriately for a bank.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we just got this rendering today.  I already referred it to the AARC and two of the four members have commented that they’re fine with it.  What we used to do on these cases in the past is approve them by motion but we sort of changed that now.  I don’t have a Resolution finalized but I think I can prepare one.  So if you want to direct me to prepare a Resolution 27-17, I talked with Mike, they know they need a building permit that will be one of the conditions and to receive final comments by the Architectural Advisory Council.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated sounds good.  Sounds like a plan. 

Mr. Peter Daly asked so refer it back directly?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes please, thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded not directly because it’s not coming back.  Direct me – or adopt.  See that’s one of the things, I don’t know how you want to handle.  You’re essentially approving it by motion subject to the completion of the Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re saying we’re approving it now at this point?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s my recommendation.  You used to approve these by motion with no Resolution so now you’re approving it by motion but I’m going to draft up a Resolution with two conditions.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated by motion, memorialized by the Resolution and we’ll give…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and you’ll get a copy of the Resolution.

Mr. Peter Daly asked so that’s Resolution 27-17?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I propose that we approve Resolution 27-17.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so you’ll get a copy of the Resolution of approval in the mail and then you just keep working with Martin for your building permit.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated submit the application for the building permit.

Mr. Joe Thompson stated thank you very much, have a good evening.
*



*



*
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we want to make note of the fact that the next Planning Board

Regular session will take place Wednesday, November 8th, 2017 at our regular time 7:00 p.m.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and Madame Chair I’d also like to thank -- we had a boy scout from troop 267 who stuck it out through this wonderful, long meeting.

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair it’s 10:15 p.m. I move that we adjourn.


*



*



*
Next Meeting: WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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